LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE

METROPOLITAN TELECOMMUNICATIONS OF WISCONSIN, LLC

REGULATIONS AND SCHEDULE OF INTRASTATE CHARGES
APPLYING TO LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE
WITHIN THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

CHECK SHEET

		1	CHECK		T	1	I
Sheet		Sheet		Sheet		Sheet	
No.	Revision	No.	Revision	No.	Revision	No.	Revision
1	Original	34	Original	67	2 nd Revised	97	10 th Revised*
2	61 st Revised*	35	Original	68	2 nd Revised	98	9 th Revised
3	26 th Revised	36	Original	69	2 nd Revised	99	10 th Revised*
4	Original	37	Original	70	2 nd Revised	100	23 rd Revised
5	1 st Revised	38	Original	71	1st Revised	101	9 th Revised
6	4 th Revised	39	Original	72	2 nd Revised	102	10 th Revised*
7	Original	40	Original	73	2 nd Revised	103	9 th Revised
8	Original	41	Original	74	2 nd Revised	104	21st Revised
9	Original	42	Original	75	2 nd Revised	105	3 rd Revised
10	Original	43	Original	76	2 nd Revised	106	6 th Revised*
11	Original	44	Original	76.1	Original	107	5 th Revised
12	Original	45	Original	76.2	Original	108	7 th Revised
13	Original	46	Original	76.3	Original	109	19 th Revised
14	Original	47	Original	77	10 th Revised	110	8 th Revised
15	Original	48	Original	78	9 ^h Revised	111	6 th Revised
16	Original	49	Original	79	1 st Revised	112	7 th Revised*
17	Original	50	Original	80	Original	113	12 th Revised
18	Original	51	Original	81	Original	114	17 th Revised
19	Original	52	Original	82	Original	115	4 th Revised
20	Original	53	Original	83	Original	116	Original
21	Original	54	Original	84	Original	117	5 th Revised
22	Original	55	Original	85	Original	117.1	Original
23	Original	56	Original	86	1st Revised	117.2	Original
24	Original	57	Original	87	Original	117.3	Original
25	Original	58	Original	88	Original	118	Original
26	Original	59	Original	89	Original	119	Original
27	Original	60	Original	90	Original	120	Original
28	Original	61	Original	91	Original	121	Original
29	Original	62	2 nd Revised	92	Original	122	Original
30	Original	63	2 nd Revised	93	Original	123	Original
31	Original	64	2 nd Revised	94	25 th Revised	124	Original
32	Original	65	1st Revised	95	6 th Revised	125	Original
33	Original	66	2 nd Revised	96	7 th Revised	126	Original

^{*}Denotes change to existing Sheet or introduction of new Sheet

Issue Date: August 23, 2024 Effective Date: September 23, 2024

CHECK SHEET (continued)

				(
Sheet		Sheet		Sheet		Sheet	
No.	Revision	No.	Revision	No.	Revision	No.	Revision
127	Original						
128	Original						
129	Original						
130	21st Revised						
131	6 th Revised						
132	6 th Revised						
133	Original						
134	Original						
135	Original						
136	Original						
137	Original						
138	1st Revised						
139	1st Revised						
140	1st Revised						
141	Original						
142	Original						
143	9 th Revised						
144	12 th Revised						

*Denotes change to existing Sheet or introduction of new Sheet

Issue Date: August 8, 2024 Effective Date: September 8, 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Title F	ge	1
Check	heet	2
Table	Contents	4
Explai	tion of Symbols and Abbreviations	7
-	tion of Product Guide	
Section	1	9
	DEFINITION OF TERMS	9
Section	2	
	REGULATIONS	13
	2.1 Undertaking of the Company	13
	2.1.1 Scope	
	2.1.2 Shortage of Equipment or Facilitates	
	2.1.3 Terms and Conditions	
	2.1.4 Liability of the Company	
	2.1.5 Notification of Service-Affecting Activities	
	2.1.6 Provision of Equipment & Facilities	
	2.1.7 Non-routine Installation	
	2.1.8 Ownership of Facilities	
	2.2 Prohibited Uses	
	2.3 Obligations of the Customer	
	2.3.1 General	
	2.3.2 Claims	
	2.4 Customer Equipment and Channels	26
	2.4.1 General	26
	2.4.2 Station Equipment	
	2.4.3 Interconnection of Facilities	
	2.4.4 Inspections	27
	2.5 Payment Arrangements	28
	2.5.1 Payment for Service	28
	2.5.2 Billing and Collection of Charges	29
	2.5.3 Disputed Bills	30
	2.5.4 Advance Payments	
	2.5.5 Deposits	30
	2.5.6 Discontinuance of Service	32
	2.5.7 Interest on Customer Overpayments	35

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Section 2 (continued)

2.6 Allowances for Interruptions in Service	
2.6.1 Credit for Interruptions	
2.6.2 Limitation on Allowances	
2.6.3 Use of Alternative Service Provided by the Company	37
2.7 Cancellation of Service	
2.7.1 Cancellation of Application for Service	38
2.7.2 Cancellation of Service by the Customer	38
2.8 Transfers and Assignments	
2.9 Notices and Communications	39
Section 3	41
SERVICE AREAS	41
3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas	41
3.3.2 Frontier North Service Areas	50
3.3.3 Frontier Communications	
3.3.4 Brightspeed Service Areas	62
3.3.5 Telephone USA of Wisconsin dba CenturyLink	76.1
Section 4	77
SERVICE CHARGES AND SURCHARGES	77
4.1 Service Order and Change Charges	
4.2 Maintenance Visit Charge	
4.3 Restoration of Service	
4.4 Additional Service Connection Charges	
Section 5	80
NETWORK SERVICES DESCRIPTIONS	
5.1 General	80
5.2 Call Timing for Usage Sensitive Services	
5.3 Distance Calculations	
5.4 Rate Periods for Time of Day Sensitive Services	
5.5 Standard Business Line	
5.6 PBX Trunk Service	
5.7 Direct Inward Dialing (DID) Service	
5.8 Optional Calling Features	
5.9 Listing Services.	
5.10 Directory Assistance	
5.11 Miscellaneous Services	

Issue Date: June 29, 2023 Effective Date: June 30, 2023

	TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)	
	69	
I	LOCAL SERVICES PRICE LIST9	93
6	6.1 General9	
6	6.2 Standard Business Local Exchange Service9	
6	6.3 PBX Trunk Service	
6	6.4 Direct Inward Dialing (DID) Service10)4
6	6.5 Optional Calling Features10	
6	6.6 Directory Assistance Services11	.3
6	6.7 Listing Services11	
6	6.8 Reserved For Future Use11	
	6.9 Subscriber Intrastate Access Charge11	
	6.10 Local Telecom Surcharge117.	
	6.11 Carrier Access Recovery Charge	.1
	6.12 Regulatory Recovery Fee-State117.	
	6.13 End User Port Charge117.	
ϵ	6.14 Local Portability Charge117.	2
	6.15 Rate Table (LTS, CARC, RRF-S, LPC)117.	
(6.16 End User Port Charge Rate Table117.	.3 (N)
Section	711	(M)
A	ADVANCED SERVICES11	.8
7	7.1 MetPath™ ISDN PRI Service11	.8
7	7.2 MetPath™ Digital DS-1 PBX Service12	20
7	7.3 MetPath™ ISDN PRI Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD	
9	Service12	22
7	7.4 MetPath™ Digital DS-1 PBX Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled	į
	Toll/LD Service12	
7	7.5 MetPath™ ISDN BRI Service	30
7	7.6 MetPath™ Digital Centrex Service	33
Section	8 Rate Groups	34
Section	9 Promotional Offerings14	1
Section	10 Individual Case Basis (ICB) Arrangements	12
Section	11 Miscellaneous Services	13
Section	12 Reserved for Future Use	4 (M)

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS, REFERENCE MARKS, AND OF ABBREVIATIONS TECHNICAL TERMS USED IN THIS PRODUCT GUIDE

The following symbols shall be used in this product guide for the purpose indicated below:

- (C) To signify changed regulation.
- (D) To signify discontinued rate and regulation.
- (I) To signify increased rate.
- (M) To signify a move in the location of text.
- (N) To signify new rate or regulation.
- (R) To signify reduced rate.
- (S) To signify reissued matter.
- (T) To signify a change in text but no change in rate or regulation.

APPLICATION OF PRODUCT GUIDE

This Product Guide sets forth the service offerings, rates, terms and conditions applicable to the furnishing of intrastate communications service by Metropolitan Telecommunications of Wisconsin, LLC to customers within the local exchange service area, defined herein.

SECTION 1 – DEFINITION OF TERMS

Certain terms used generally throughout this product guide are defined below.

Access Line An arrangement which connects the Customer's location to a carrier's

switching center or point of presence.

Account Codes Optional, customer-defined digits that allow the Customer to identify the

individual user, department or client associated with a call. Account Codes

appear on the Customer bill.

Advance Payment Payment of all or part of a charge required before the start of service.

Authorized User A person, firm, corporation or other entity that either is authorized by the

Customer to use local exchange telephone service or is placed in a position by the Customer, either through acts or omissions, to use local exchange

telephone service.

Business Service A class of service provided to individuals engaged in business, firms,

partnerships, corporations, agencies, shops, works, tenants of office buildings, and individuals practicing a profession or operating a business who have no offices other than their residences and where the use of the service is primarily or substantially of a business, professional or occupational nature.

Commission Wisconsin Utilities Commission

Company Metropolitan Telecommunications of Wisconsin, LLC, unless otherwise

clearly indicated by the context.

Customer The person, firm, corporation or other entity which orders, cancels, amends

or uses service and is responsible for payment of charges and compliance

with the Company's product guide regulations.

Deposit Refers to a cash or equivalent of cash security held as a guarantee for payment

of the charges.

DID Trunk A form of local switched access that provides the ability for an outside party

to call an internal extension directly without the intervention of the Company

operator.

SECTION 1 - DEFINITION OF TERMS (continued)

Dial Pulse (or "DP") The pulse type employed by rotary dial station sets.

Dual Tone

Multi-Frequency

("**DTMF**") The pulse type employed by tone dial Station sets.

End User Any person, firm, corporation, partnership or other entity which uses the

services of the Company under the provisions and regulations of this product guide. The End User is responsible for payment unless the charges for the

services utilized are accepted and paid for by another Customer.

End Office With respect to each NPA-NXX code prefix assigned to the Company, the

location of the Company's "end office" for purposes of this product guide shall be the point of interconnection associated with that NPA-NXX code in

the Local Exchange Routing Guide ("LERG"), issued by Bellcore.

Hearing Impaired Those persons with communication impairments, including those hearing

impaired, deaf, deaf/blind, and speech impaired persons who have an impairment that prevents them from communicating over the telephone

without the aid of a telecommunications device for the deaf.

Hunting Routes a call to an idle station line in a prearranged group when the called

station line is busy.

In-Only A service attribute that restricts outward dial access and routes incoming

calls to a designated answer point.

IXC or Interexchange Carrier

A long distance telecommunications services provider.

Individual Case

Basis (**ICB**) A service arrangement in which the regulations, rates and charges are

developed based on the specific circumstances of the Customer's situation.

Joint User A person, firm or corporation designated by the Customer as a user of local

exchange service furnished to the Customer by the Company, and to whom a portion of the charges for such facilities are billed under a joint use

arrangement.

SECTION 1 - DEFINITION OF TERMS (continued)

LATA A local access and transport area established pursuant to the Modification

of Final Judgment entered by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia in Civil Action No. 82-0192; or any other geographic area designated as a LATA in the National Exchange Carrier Association,

Inc. Tariff F.C.C. No. 4.

Local Calling A completed call or telephonic communication between a calling Station

and any other Station within the local service area of the calling Station.

Local Exchange

Carrier (LEC) A company that furnishes exchange telephone service.

Mbps Megabits, or millions of bits, per second.

Monthly Recurring

Charges The monthly charges to the Customer for services, facilities and

equipment, which continue for the agreed upon duration of the service.

Multi-Frequency

("MF") An inter-machine pulse-type used for signaling between telephone

switches, or between telephone switches and PBX/key systems.

Non-Recurring

Charges The one-time initial charges for services or facilities, usually assessed on a

one-time basis, to initiate and establish service, including but not limited to

charges for construction, installation, or special fees, for which the Customer becomes liable at the time the Service Order is executed.

Other Telephone

Company An Exchange Telephone Company, other than the Company.

PBX Private Branch Exchange

Premises A building or buildings on contiguous property.

SECTION 1 - DEFINITION OF TERMS (continued)

Service Commencement Date

The first day following the date on which the Company notifies the Customer that the requested service or facility is available for use, unless extended by the customer's refusal to accept service which does not conform to standards set forth in the Service Order and this product guide, in which case the Service Commencement Date is the date of the Customer's acceptance of service. The parties may mutually agree on a substitute Service Commencement Date.

Service Order

The written request for local exchange services executed by the Customer and the Company in a format specified by the Company. The signing of a Service Order by the Customer and acceptance thereof by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set forth therein and pursuant to this product guide, but the duration of the service is calculated from the Service Commencement Date.

Services The Company's telecommunications services offered on the Company's network.

Shared Facilities

A facility or equipment system subsystem that can be used simultaneously by several Customers.

Station Telephone equipment from or to which calls are placed.

TBD To Be Determined.

Toll Denial This service blocks access to the Long Distance Message Telecommunications Network, either by direct or operator assistance.

Trunk A communications path connecting two switching systems in a network, used in the establishment of an end-to-end connection.

Two Way A service attribute that includes outward dial capabilities for outbound calls and can also be used to carry inbound calls to a central point for further processing.

Usage Based Charges

Charges for minutes or messages traversing over local exchange facilities.

User or End User

A customer, Joint User, or any other person authorized by the Customer to use service provided under this product guide.

SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS

2.1 Undertaking of the Company

2.1.1 **Scope:**

The Company undertakes to furnish communications service in connection with one-way and/or two-way information transmission between points within the State of Wisconsin under the terms of this product guide.

The Company is responsible under this product guide only for the services and facilities provided herein, and it assumes no responsibility for any service provided by any other entity that purchases access to the Company network in order to originate or terminate its own services or to communicate with its own customers.

2.1.2 Shortage of Equipment or Facilities

The Company reserves the right to limit or to allocate the use of existing facilities, or of additional facilities offered by the Company, when necessary because of lack of facilities, or due to some other cause beyond the Company's control.

The furnishing of service under this product guide is subject to the availability on a continuing basis of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the Company's facilities as well as the facilities the Company may obtain from other carriers to furnish service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of the Company.

2.1.3 Terms and Conditions

- 2.1.3.1 Except as otherwise provided herein, service is provided on the basis of a minimum period of at least one month, 24 hours per day. and shall continue to be provided until canceled by the Customer, via telephone or in writing, on not less than 30 days notice. Unless otherwise specified herein, for the purpose of computing charges in this product guide, a month is considered to have 30 days. All calculations of dates set forth in this product guide shall be based on calendar days, unless otherwise specified herein.
- 2.1.3.2 Customers may be required to enter into written Service Orders which shall contain or reference the name of the customer, a specific description of the service ordered, the rates to be charged, the duration of the services, and the terms and conditions in this product guide.

2.1.3 Terms and Conditions (continued)

- 2.1.3.3 At the expiration of the initial term specified in each Service Order, or in any extension thereof, service shall continue on a month-to-month basis at the then current rates unless terminated by either party upon 30 days notice. Any termination shall not relieve Customer of its obligation to pay any charges incurred under the Service Order and this product guide prior to termination. The rights and obligations which by their nature extend beyond the termination of the term of the Service Order shall survive such termination.
- 2.1.3.4 This product guide shall be interpreted and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin without regard for its choice of laws provision.
- 2.1.3.5 The Customer has no property right to the Telephone number or any other call number designation associated with services furnished by the Company. The Company reserves the right to change such numbers, or the central office designation associated with such numbers, or both, assigned to the Customer, whenever the Company deems it necessary to do so in the conduct of its business.
- 2.1.3.6 The Customer agrees to operate Company-provided equipment in accordance with instructions of the Company or the Company's agent. Failure to do so will void Company liability for interruption of service and may make the Customer responsible for damage to equipment pursuant to section 2.1.3.7 below.
- 2.1.3.7 The Customer agrees to return to the Company all Company-provided equipment delivered to the Customer within five (5) days of the termination of the service in connection with which the equipment was used. Said equipment shall be in the same condition as when delivered to Customer, normal wear and tear only expected. Customer shall reimburse the Company, upon demand, for any costs incurred by the Company due to Customer's failure to comply with this provision.

2.1.4 Liability of the Company

2.1.4.1

The liability of the Company for damages arising out of the furnishing of its Service, including but not limited to mistakes, omissions, interruption, delay, or errors, or other defects, representations, or use of these services or damages arising out of the failure to furnish the service, whether caused by acts or omission, shall be limited to the extension of allowances for interruption as set forth in 2.6, below. The extension of such allowances for interruption shall be the sole remedy of the Customer and the sole liability of the Company. The Company will not be liable for any direct, indirect, incidental, special, consequential, lost profits, exemplary or punitive damages to Customer as a result of any Company service, equipment or facilities, or the acts or omissions or negligence of the Company's employees or agents.

2.1.4.2 The Company's liability for willful misconduct, if established as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings, is not limited by this product guide. The Company's liability, if any, with regard to delayed installation of Company facilities or commencement of service, shall not exceed \$1,000. With respect to any other claim or suit, by a Customer or by any others, for damage associated with the ordering (including the reservation of any specific number for use with a service), installation (including delays thereof), provision, termination, maintenance, repair, interruption of restoration of any service or facilities offered under this product guide, and subject to the provisions of Section 2.6, the Company's liability, if any, shall be limited as provided herein.

2.1.4 Liability of the Company (continued)

- 2.1.4.3 The Company shall not be liable for any delay or failure of performance or equipment due to causes beyond its control, including but not limited to: acts of God, fire, flood, explosion or other catastrophes; and law, order, regulation, direction, action or request of the United States government or of any other government, including state and local governments having or claiming jurisdiction over the Company, or of any department, agency, commission, bureau, corporation or other instrumentality of any one or more of these federal, state, or local governments, or of any military authority; preemption of existing service in compliance with national emergencies; insurrections; riots; wars; unavailability of rights-of-way or materials, or strikes, lockouts, work stoppages, or other labor difficulties.
- 2.1.4.4 The Company shall not be liable for (a) any act or omission of any entity furnishing the Company or the Company's Customers facilities or equipment used for or with the services the Company offers; or (b) for the acts or omissions of common carriers or warehousemen.
- 2.1.4.5 The Company shall not be liable for any damages or losses due to the fault of negligence of the Customer or due to the failure or malfunction of Customer-provided equipment or facilities.
- 2.1.4.6 The Customer shall indemnify and hold the Company harmless from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits, or other action, or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by any other party or person(s), and for any loss, damage, or destruction of any property whether owned by the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by the installation, operation; failure to operate, maintenance, removal, condition, location, or use of installation provided by the Company. The Company reserves the right to require each Customer to sign an agreement acknowledging acceptance of the provisions of this section as a condition precedent to such installations.

2.1.4 Liability of the Company (continued)

- 2.1.4.7 The Company shall not be liable for any defacement of or damage to Customer premises resulting from the furnishing of services or equipment on such premises or the installation or removal thereof, unless such defacement or damage is caused by gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Company's agents or employees. No agents or employees of other participating carriers shall be deemed to be agents or employees of the Company.
- 2.1.4.8 Notwithstanding the Customer's obligations as set forth in Section 2.3.2, the Company shall be indemnified, defended, and held harmless by the Customer or by others authorized by it to use the service against any claim, loss of damage arising from Customer's use of services furnished under this product guide, including: claims for libel, slander, invasion of privacy or infringement of copyright arising from the material, data, information, or other content transmitted via the Company's service; and patent infringement claims arising from combining or connecting the service offered by the Company with apparatus and systems of the Customer or others. All other claims arising out of any act or omission of the Customer or others, in connection with any service provided by the Company pursuant to this product guide.
- 2.1.4.9 The entire liability of the Company for any claim, loss, damage or expense from any cause whatsoever shall in no event exceed sums actually paid to the Company by Customer for the specific services giving rise to the claim.
- 2.1.4.10 The Company makes no warranties or representations, express or implied, including warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular use, except those expressly set forth herein.
- 2.1.4.11 The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of any other company or companies furnishing a portion of the service, or for damages associated with service, channels, or equipment which it does not furnish, or for damages which result from the operation of Customer-provided systems, equipment, facilities or services which are interconnected with Company services.

2.1.4 Liability of the Company (continued)

2.1.4.12

The Company does not guarantee nor make any warranty with respect to service installations at locations at which there is present an atmosphere that is explosive, prone to fire, dangerous or otherwise unsuitable for such installations. The Customer shall indemnify and hold the Company harmless from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits or other action, or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted or asserted by the Customer or by any other party, for any personal injury to, or death of, any person or persons, or for any loss, damage or destruction of any property, whether owned by the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, locations or use of service furnished by the Company at such locations.

2.1.4.13 The Company shall not be liable for the Customer's failure to fulfill its obligations to take all necessary steps including, without limitation, obtaining, installing and maintaining all necessary equipment, or materials and supplies, for interconnection of the terminal equipment or communications system of the Customer, or any third party acting as its agent, to the Company's network. The Customer shall secure all licenses, permits, rights-of-way, and other arrangements necessary for such interconnection. In addition, the Customer shall ensure that its equipment and/or system or that of its agent is properly interfaced with the Company's service, that the signals emitted into the Company's network are of proper mode, band-with, power, data speed, and signal level for the intended use of the Customer and in compliance with the criteria set forth in Section 2.1.6 following, and that the signals do not damage Company equipment, injure its personnel or degrade service to other Customers. If the Customer or its agent fails to maintain and operate its equipment and/or system or that of its agent properly, with resulting imminent harm to Company equipment, personnel, or the quality of service to other Customers, the Company may, upon written notice, require the use of protective equipment at the Customer's expense. If this

fails to produce satisfactory quality and safety, the Company may, upon written notice, terminate the Customer's service without

Issue Date: August 14, 2015 Effective Date: August 15, 2015

liability.

2.1.4 Liability of the Company (continued)

- 2.1.4.14 With respect to Emergency Number 911 Service:
 - (a) This service is offered solely as an aid in handing assistance calls in connection with fire, police and other emergencies. The Company is not responsible for any losses, claims, demands, suits or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted or asserted by the Customer or by any other party or person for any personal injury to or death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage or destruction of any property, whether owned by the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been caused by: (1) mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors or other defects in the provision of this service, or (2) installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location or use of any equipment and facilities furnishing this service.
 - (b) The Company is not responsible for any infringement or invasion of the right of privacy of any person or persons, caused or claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, occasion or use of emergency 911 service features and the equipment associated therewith, or by any services furnished by the Company including, but not limited to, the identification of the telephone number, address or name associated with the telephone used by the party or parties accessing emergency 911 service, and which arise out of the negligence or other wrongful act of the Company, the Customer, its users, agencies or municipalities, or the employees or agents of any one of them.
- 2.1.4.15 The Company's liability arising from errors or omissions in Directory Listings, other than charged listing, shall be limited to the amount of actual impairment of the Customer's service and in no event shall exceed one-half the amount of the fixed monthly charges applicable to exchange service affected during the period covered by the directory in which the error or omission occurs. In cases of charged Directory Listings, the liability of the Company shall be limited to an amount not exceeding the amount of charges for the charged listings involved during the period covered by the directory in which the error or omission occurs.

2.1.4 Liability of the Company (continued)

- 2.1.4.16 In conjunction with a non-published telephone number, as described in Section 3.4.5.3, the Company will not be liable for failure or refusal to complete any call to such telephone when the call is not placed by number. The Company will try to prevent the disclosure of the number of such telephone, but will not be liable should such number be divulged.
- 2.1.4.17 When a Customer with a non-published telephone number, as defined herein, places a call to the Emergency 911 Service, the Company will release the name and address of the calling party, where such information can be determined, to the appropriate local governmental authority responsible for the Emergency 911 Service, upon request of such governmental authority. By subscribing to service under this product guide Customer acknowledges and agrees with the release of information as described above.
- 2.1.4.18 In conjunction with the Busy Line Verification and Interrupt Service as described in Section 3.3.2, the Customer shall indemnify and save the Company harmless against all claims that may arise from either party to the interrupted call or any person.
- 2.1.4.19 The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission concerning the implementation of Presubscription, as defined herein.

2.1.5 Notification of Service-Affecting Activities

The Company will provide the Customer reasonable notification of service-affecting activities that may occur in normal operation of its business. Such activities may include, but are not limited to, equipment or facilities additions, removals or rearrangements and routine preventive maintenance. Generally, such activities are not specific to any individual Customer but affect many Customers services. No specific advance notification period is applicable to all service activities. The Company will work cooperatively with the Customer to determine the reasonable, notification requirements. With some emergency or unplanned service-affecting conditions, such as an outage resulting from cable damage, notification to the Customer may not be possible.

2.1.6 Provisions of Equipment and Facilities

- 2.1.6.1 The Company shall use reasonable efforts to make available services to a Customer on or before a particular date, subject to the provisions of and compliance by the Customer with the regulations contained in this product guide. The Company does not guarantee availability by any such date and shall not be liable for any delays in commencing service to a Customer.
- 2.1.6.2 The Company shall use reasonable efforts to maintain facilities and equipment that it furnishes to the Customer. The Customer may not, nor may Customer permit others to, rearrange, disconnect, remove, attempt to repair or otherwise interfere with any of the facilities or equipment installed by the Company, except upon the written consent of the Company.
- 2.1.6.3 Equipment the Company provided or installs at the Customer Premises for use in connection with the services the Company offers shall not be used for any purpose other than that for which the Company has provided it.
- 2.1.6.4 The Company shall not be responsible for the installation, operation, or maintenance of any Customer provided communications equipment. Where such equipment is connected to the facilities furnished pursuant to this product guide, the responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of facilities offered under this product guide and to the maintenance and operation of such facilities. Beyond this responsibility, the Company shall not be responsible for:
 - (a) the transmission of signals by Customer provided equipment or for the quality of, or defects in, such transmission; or
 - (b) the reception of signals by Customer provided equipment; or
 - (c) network control signaling where such signaling is performed by Customer-provided network control signaling equipment.

2.1.7 Non-routine Installation

At the Customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the Company's regular business hours or in unusual locations. In such cases, charges based on cost of the actual labor, material, or other costs incurred by or charged to the Company will apply. If installation is started during regular business hours but, at the Customer's request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited to, weekends, holidays, and/or night hours, additional charges may apply.

2.1.8 Ownership of Facilities

Title to all facilities provided in accordance with this product guide remains in the Company, its agents or contractors.

2.2 **Prohibited Uses**

- 2.2.1 The services the Company offers shall not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any use as to which the Customer has not obtained all required governmental approvals, authorizations, licenses, consents and permits.
- 2.2.2 The Company may require applicants for service who intend to use the Company's offerings for resale and/or for shared use to file a letter with the Company confirming that their use of the Company's offerings complies with relevant laws and the Wisconsin Commission's regulations, policies, orders, and decisions.
- 2.2.3 The Company may block any signals being transmitted over its Network by Customers which cause interference to the Company or other users. Customer shall be relieved of all obligations to make payments for charges relating to any blocked Service and shall indemnify the Company for any claim, judgment or liability resulting from such blockage.
- 2.2.4 A Customer, joint user, or authorized user may not assign, or transfer in any manner, the service or any rights associated with the service without the written consent of the Company. The Company will permit a Customer to transfer its existing service to another entity if the existing Customer has paid all charges owed to the Company for regulated communications services. Such a transfer will be treated as a disconnection of existing service and installation of new service, and non-recurring installation charges as stated in this product guide will apply.

2.3 **Obligations of the Customer**

- 2.3.1 The Customer shall be responsible for:
 - (a) the payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this product guide;
 - (b) reimbursing the Company for damage to, or loss of, the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the Customer; or the noncompliance by the Customer, with these regulations; or by fire or theft or other casualty on the Customer's premises, unless caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company. The Company will, upon reimbursement for damages, cooperate with the Customer in prosecuting a claim against the person causing such damage and the Customer shall be subrogated to the Company's right of recovery of damages to the extent of such payment.
 - (c) providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, any needed personnel, equipment, space, and power to operate Company facilities and equipment installed on the premises of the Customer, at the level of heating and air conditioning necessary to maintain the proper operating environment of such premises.
 - (d) obtaining, maintaining, and otherwise having full responsibility for all rights-of-way and conduit necessary for installation of fiber optic cable and associated equipment used to provide Local Exchange Service to the Customer from the cable building entrance or property line to the location of the equipment space described in 2.3.1(c). Any costs associated with obtaining and maintaining the rights-of-way described herein, including the costs of altering the structure to permit installation of the Company-provided facilities, shall be born entirely by, or may be charged by the Company to, the Customer. The Company may require the Customer to demonstrate its compliance with this section prior to accepting any order for service;

2.3 **Obligations of the Customer (continued)**

- 2.3.1 The Customer shall be responsible for: (continued)
 - (e) providing a safe place to work and complying with all laws and regulations regarding the working conditions on the premises at which Company employees and agents shall be installing or maintaining the Company's facilities and equipment. The Customer may be required to install and maintain Company facilities and equipment within a hazardous area if, in the Company's opinion, injury or damage to the Company's employees or property might result from installation or maintenance by the Company. The Customer shall be responsible for identifying, monitoring, removing, and disposing of any hazardous material (e.g. friable asbestos) prior to any construction or installation work;
 - (f) complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all consents, approvals, licenses, and permits as may be required with respect to, the location of Company facilities and equipment in any Customer premises or the rights-of-way for which Customer is responsible under section 2.3.1 (d); and granting or obtaining permission for Company agents or employees to enter the premises of the Customer at any time for the purpose of installing, inspecting, maintaining, repairing, or upon termination of service as stated herein, removing the facilities or equipment of the Company.
 - (g) not creating or allowing to be placed any liens or other encumbrances on the Company's equipment or facilities; and
 - (h) making Company facilities and equipment available periodically for maintenance purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the Customer. No allowance for interruptions in service will be made for the period during which services are interrupted for such purposes.

2.3.2 **Claims**

With respect to any service or facility provided by the Company, Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from and against all claims, actions, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees for:

- (a) any loss, destruction or damage to property of the Company or any third party, or the death or injury to persons, including, but not limited to employees or invitees of either the Company or the Customer, to the extent caused by or resulting from the negligent or intentional act or omission of Customer, its employees, agents, representatives or invitees; or
- (b) any claim, loss, damage, expense or liability for infringement of any copyright, patent, trade secret, or any proprietary or intellectual property right of any third party, arising from any act or omission by the Customer, including, without limitation, use of the Company's services and facilities in a manner not contemplated by the agreement between Customer and Company or this product guide.
- (c) Customer shall not assert any claim against any other Customer or user of the Company's services for damages resulting in whole or in party from or arising in connection with the furnishing of service under this product guide including but not limited to mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors or other defects or misrepresentations, whether or not such other Customer or user contributed in any way to the occurrence of the damages, unless such damages were caused solely by the negligent to intentional act or omission of the other Customer or user and not by any act or omission of the Company. Nothing in this product guide is intended either to limit or to expand Customer's right to assert any claims against third parties for damages of any nature other than those described in the preceding sentence.

2.4 Customer Equipment and Channels

2.4.1 General

A Customer may transmit or receive information or signals via the facilities of the Company.

2.4.2 Station Equipment

2.4.2.1 The Customer is responsible for providing and maintaining any terminal equipment on the Customer premises. The electric power consumed by such equipment shall be provided by, and maintained at the expense of, the Customer. All such terminal equipment must be registered with the FCC under 47 C.F.R., Part 68 and all wiring must be installed and maintained in compliance with those regulations. The Company will, where practicable, notify the Customer that temporary discontinuance of the use of service may be required; however, where prior notice is not practicable, nothing contained herein shall be deemed to impair the Company's right to discontinue forthwith the use of a service temporarily if such action is reasonable under the circumstances. In case of such temporary discontinuance, the Customer will be promptly notified and afforded the opportunity to correct the condition which gave rise to the temporary discontinuance.

2.4 Customer Equipment and Channels (continued)

2.4.2.2

The Customer is responsible for ensuring that Customer-provided equipment connected to Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such equipment and facilities. The magnitude and character of the voltages and currents impressed on Company-provided equipment and wiring by the connection, operation, or maintenance of such equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause damage to the Company-provided equipment and wiring or injury to the Company's employees or other persons. Any additional protective equipment required to prevent such damage or injury shall be provided by the Company at the Customer's expense.

2.4.3 Interconnection of Facilities

- 2.4.3.1 Any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities and equipment of the Company used for furnishing Local Exchange Services and the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be provided at the Customer's expense.
- 2.4.3.2 Local Services may be connected to the services or facilities of other communications carriers only when authorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the product guides of the other communications carriers which are applicable to such connections.
- 2.4.3.3 Facilities furnished under this product guide may be connected to Customer provided terminal equipment in accordance with the provisions of this product guide.

2.4.4 Inspections

2.4.4.1

Upon reasonable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the Customer is complying with requirements set forth in section 2.4.2.2 for the installations, operation, and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities, equipment, and wiring in the connection of Customer-provided facilities and equipment to Company-owned facilities and equipment.

Customer Equipment and Channels (continued)

If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being complied with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary to protect its facilities, equipment and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within ten days of receiving this notice, the Customer must take this corrective action and notify the Company of the action taken. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of service, to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel from harm. The Company will, upon a request from the customer 24 hours in advance, provide the Customer with a statement of technical parameters that the Customer's equipment must meet.

2.5 **Payment Arrangements**

2.4.4.2

2.4

The following provisions shall apply to all service:

2.5.1 Payment for Service

The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for services furnished by the Company to the Customer or its Joint or Authorized Users. Objections must be received by the Company within 120 days after statement of account is rendered, or the charges shall be deemed correct and binding upon the Customer. A bill will not be deemed correct and binding upon the customer if the Company has records on the basis of which an objection may be considered, or if the customer has in his or her possession such Company records. If an entity other than the Company imposes charges on the Company, in addition to its own internal costs, in connection with a service for which a Company Non-Recurring Charge is specific, those charges may be passed on to the Customer.

2.5 **Payment Arrangements (continued)**

2.5.1.1 Taxes

The customer is responsible for the payment of any sales, use, excise, access or other local, state and federal taxes, charges or surcharges (however designated) excluding taxes on the Company's net income, imposed on or based upon the provision, sale or use of Local Services. Any taxes imposed by a local jurisdiction (e.g., county and municipal taxes) will only be recovered from those Customers located in the affected jurisdictions.

2.5.1.1.1 Other Charges

If an entity other than the Company (e.g. another carrier or a supplier) imposes charges on the Company, in addition to its own internal costs, in connection with a service for which the Company's non-recurring charge is specified, those charges will be passed on to the Customer. It shall be the responsibility of the Customer to pay any such taxes that subsequently became applicable retroactively.

2.5.2 Billing and Collection of Charges

Bills will be rendered monthly to Customer.

- 2.5.2.1 All service, installation, monthly Recurring, and Non-Recurring Charges are due and payable upon receipt.
- 2.5.2.2 The Company shall present invoices for Recurring Charges monthly to the Customer, in advance of the month in such service is provided.
- 2.5.2.3 For new customers or existing customers whose service is disconnected, the charge for the fraction of the month in which service was furnished will be calculated on a pro rated basis. For this purpose every month is considered to have 30 days.
- 2.5.2.4 A check return charge will be assessed for checks with insufficient funds or non-existing accounts.

2.5 **Payment Arrangements (continued)**

2.5.3 Disputed Bills

The Customer shall notify the Company of any disputed items on a bill. If the Customer and the Company are unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction, the Customer may file a complaint with the Utilities Commission in accordance with the Commission's rules of procedure.

2.5.3.1 The date of the dispute shall be the date the Company receives sufficient documentation to enable it to investigate the dispute. The date of the resolution is the date the Company completes its investigation and notifies the Customer of the disposition of the dispute.

2.5.4 Advance Payments

Reserved for future use.

2.5.5 Deposits

2.5.5.1 Applicants for service or any existing Customer whose financial condition is not acceptable to the Company, or is not a matter of general knowledge, may be required at any time to provide the Company a security deposit. The deposit requested will be in cash or the equivalent of cash, and will be held as a guarantee for the payment of charges. A deposit does not relieve the Customer of the responsibility for the prompt payment of bills on presentation. The deposit will not exceed an amount equal to two month's charges for service or facility which has a minimum payment period of one month.

- 2.5 **Payment Arrangements (continued)**
- 2.5.5 Deposits
 - 2.5.5.2 When a service or facility is discontinued, the amount of a deposit, if any, will be applied to the Customer's account and any credit balance remaining will be refunded. Before the service or facility is discontinued, the Company may, at its option, return the deposit or credit to the Customer's account.
 - 2.5.5.3 Deposits held for business customers will accrue interest.

2.5 Payment Arrangements (continued)

2.5.6 Discontinuance of Service

- 2.5.6.1 Upon non payment of any amounts owing to the Company, the Company may, by giving five days' prior written notice served personally upon the Customer; eight days written notice in postpaid wrapper; or five days after the Customer signs or refuses a registered letter containing written notice, suspend service without incurring any liability.
- 2.5.6.2 Upon violation of any of the other material terms or conditions for furnishing service, the Company may, by giving 30 days prior notice in writing to the Customer, discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability, if such violation continues during the 30 day period.
- 2.5.6.3 Upon condemnation of any material portion of the facilities used by the Company to provide service to a Customer or if a casualty renders all or any material portion of such facilities inoperable beyond feasible repair, the Company, by notice to the Customer, may discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability.
- 2.5.6.4 Upon the Customer's insolvency, assignment for the benefit of creditors, filing for bankruptcy or reorganization, failing to discharge and involuntary petition within the time permitted by law, or abandonment of service, the Company may, with prior notice to the Customer, immediately discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability.
- 2.5.6.5 Upon any governmental prohibition or required alteration of the services to be provided or any violation of any applicable law or regulation, the Company may immediately discontinue service without incurring any liability.

2.5.1 Payment Arrangements (continued)

- 2.5.6 Discontinuance of Service (continued)
 - 2.5.6.6 The Company may discontinue the furnishing of any and/or all service(s) to a Customer, without incurring any liability.
 - 2.5.6.6.1 Immediately and without notice if the Company deems that such action is necessary to prevent or to protect against fraud or to otherwise protect its personnel, agents, facilities or services. The Company may discontinue service pursuant to this sub-section 2.5.6.6.1 (a-f) if;
 - (a) The Customer refuses to furnish information to the Company regarding the Customer's credit-worthiness, its past or current use of common carrier communications services or its planned use of service(s); or
 - (b) The Customer provides false information to the Company regarding the Customer's identity, address, credit-worthiness, past or current use of common carrier communications services, or its planned use of the Company's service(s); or
 - (c) The Customer has been given written notices as described in Section 2.5.6.1 by the Company of any past due amount (which remains unpaid in whole or part) for any of the Company's other common carrier communications services to which the Customer either subscribes or has subscribed to use; or

2.5 Payment Arrangements (continued)

2.5.6 Discontinuance of Service (continued)

2.5.6.6.1 (continued)

- (d) The Customer uses or attempts to use service with the intent to avoid the payment of the product guide charges, either in whole or in part, by:
 - (d.1) Using or attempting to use service by rearranging, tampering with, or making connection to the Company's service not authorized by this product guide; or
 - (d.2) Using tricks, schemes, false or invalid numbers, false credit devices, electronic devices; or
 - (d.3) Any other fraudulent means or devices; or
- (e) Use of Service in such a manner as to interfere with the services of other users; or
- (f) Use of service for unlawful purposes.
- 2.5.6.6.2 Immediately upon written notice to the Customer of any sum thirty (30) days past due;
- 2.5.6.6.3 Upon ten (10) days written notice to the Customer, after failure of the Customer to comply with a request made by the Company for security for the payment of service in accordance with Section 2.5.5; or

2.5 **Payment Arrangements (continued)**

2.5.6 Discontinuance of Service (continued)

- 2.5.6.6.4 Ten (10) days after sending the Customer written notice of noncompliance with any provision of this product guide if the noncompliance is not corrected within the ten (10) day period; or
- 2.5.6.6.5 Upon five (5) days written notice, excluding Sundays and holidays, for non-payment of a bill for service.
- 2.5.6.7 The suspension of discontinuance of service(s) by the Company pursuant to this Section does not relieve the Customer of any obligation to pay the Company for charges due and owing for service(s) furnished during the time of or up to suspension or discontinuance.
- 2.5.6.8 Upon the Company's discontinuance of service to the Customer under section 2.5.6.1 or 2.5.6.2, all applicable charges, including termination charges, shall become due. This is in addition to all other remedies that may be available to the Company at law or in equity or under any other provision of this product guide.

2.5.7 Interest on Customer Overpayments

A Customer who makes a payment to the Company in excess of the correct charge for telephone service, which overpayment was caused by erroneous billing by the Company, shall be paid interest on the amount of the overpayment.

2.6 Allowances for Interruptions in Service

2.6.1 Credit for Interruptions

When the use of service or facilities furnished by the Company is interrupted due to any cause other than the negligence or willful act of the Customer, or the operation or failure of the facilities or equipment provided by the Customer, a pro rata adjustment of the monthly Recurring Charges subject to interruption will be allowed for the service and facilities rendered useless and inoperative by reason of the interruption, whenever said interruption continues for a period of 24 hours or more from the time the interruption is reported to or known to exist by the Company, except as otherwise specified in the Company's product guides. If the Customer reports a service, facility or circuit to be inoperative but declines to release it for testing and repair, it is considered to be impaired, but not interrupted.

For calculating credit allowances, every month is considered to have 30 days. A credit allowance is applied on pro-rata basis against the rates specified hereunder for Local Line or Local Trunk Service and is dependent upon the length of the interruption. Only those facilities on the interrupted portion of the circuit will receive a credit. Credit allowances for service outages that exceed 24 hours in duration will be rounded up at the next whole 24 hours.

2.6.2 Limitations on Allowances

No credit allowance will be made for:

- (a) interruptions due to the negligence of or noncompliance with the provisions of this product guide by, the Customer, Authorized User, Joint-User, or other common carrier providing service connected to the service of Company;
- (b) interruptions due to the negligence of any person other than the Company including, but not limited to, the Customer or other common carriers connected to the Company's facilities;

- 2.6 Allowances for Interruptions in Service (continued)
 - 2.6.2 Limitations on Allowances (continued)
 - (c) interruptions due to the failure or malfunction of non-Company equipment;
 - (d) interruptions of service during any period in which the Company is not given full and free access to its facilities and equipment for the purpose of investigating and correcting interruptions;
 - (e) interruptions of service during a period in which the Customer continues to use the service on an impaired basis;
 - (f) interruptions of service during any period when the Customer has released service to the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation of a Customer order for a change in service arrangements;
 - (g) interruption of service due to circumstances or causes beyond the control of the Company.
 - 2.6.3 User of Alternative Service Provided by the Company: Should the Customer elect to use an alternative service provided by the Company during the period that a service is interrupted, the Customer must pay the product guide rates and charges for the alternative services used.

2.7 Cancellation of Service

2.7.1 Cancellation of Applications for Service

The following provisions shall apply to all service offerings:

- 2.7.1.1 Unless the Company breeches its obligations, applications for service are non-cancelable after 48 hours, unless the Company otherwise agrees. Where the Company permits Customer to cancel an application for service prior to the start of service or prior to any special construction, no charges will be imposed except for those specified below.
- 2.7.1.2 Where prior to cancellation by the Customer, the Company incurs any expenses in installing the service or in preparing to install the service that it otherwise would not have incurred, a charge equal to the costs the company incurred, less net salvage, shall apply, but in no case shall this charge exceed the sum of the charge for the minimum period of service ordered, including installation charges, and all charges others levy against the Company that would have been chargeable to the Customer had service begun.
- 2.7.1.3 The special charges described in 2.7.1.1 and 2.7.1.2 will be calculated and applied on a case-by-case basis.

2.7.2 Cancellation of Service by the Customer

If a Customer cancels a Service Order or terminates services before the completion of the term for any reason whatsoever other than a service interruption (as defined in 2.6.1 above), Customer agrees to pay to Company the following sums which shall become due and owing as of the effective date of the cancellation or termination and payable within the period set forth in 2.5.5, all costs, fees and expenses incurred in connection with:

- 2.7.2 Cancellation of Service by the Customer (cont.)
 - 1) all Non-Recurring Charges reasonably expended by the Company to establish service to Customer, plus
 - 2) any disconnection, early cancellation or termination charges reasonably incurred and paid to third parties by Company on behalf of Customer, plus
 - 3) all Recurring Charges specified in the applicable Service Order product guide for the balance of the then current term.

2.8 Transfers and Assignments

Neither the Company nor the Customer may assign or transfer its rights or duties in connection with the services and facilities provided by the Company without the written consent of the other party, except that the Company may assign its rights and duties (a) to any subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the Company (b) pursuant to any sale or transfer of substantially all assets of the Company; (c) pursuant to any financing, merger or reorganization of the Company.

2.9 **Notices and Communications**

- 2.9.1 The Customer shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Company shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that Customer may also designate a separate address to which the Company's bills for service shall be mailed.
- 2.9.2 The Company shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Customer shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that Company may designate a separate address on each bill for service to which the Customer shall mail payment on that bill.

- 2.9.3 All notices or other communications required to be given pursuant to this product guide will be in writing. Notices and other communications of either party, and all bills mailed by the Company, shall be presumed to have been delivered to the other party on the third business day following placement of the notice, communications, or bill with the U.S. Mail or a private delivery service prepaid and properly addressed, or when actually received or refused by the Addressee, whichever occurs first.
- 2.9.4 The Company or the Customer shall advise the other party of any changes to the addresses designated for notices, other communications or billing, by following the procedures for giving notice set forth herein.

SECTION 3 - SERVICE AREAS

3.1 Exchange Service Areas

Local exchange services are provided, subject to availability of facilities and equipment, in areas currently served by the following Incumbent LECs:

- 1) AT&T Telecommunications
- 2) Frontier Communications
- 3) Frontier (fVerizon GTE)
- 4) Brightspeed (N)
- 5) Telephone USA of Wisconsin dba CenturyLink (N)

3.2 Rate Groups

Charges for local services provided by the Company may be based, in part, on the Rate Group associated with the Customers End Office. The Rate Group is determined by the total access lines and PBX trunks in the local calling area which can be reached from each End Office. The Rate Group for each end office is shown in Section 8 of this Price Guide.

3.3 Local Calling Areas

3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community Calling
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Area
		Brussels, Luxemburg, Sturgeon
Algoma	Algoma, Casco, Forestvl, Kewaunee	Bay
	Appleton, Blackcree,, Hortonville,	
	Kaukauna, Litttle Chute, Neenah-Menasha,	Larsen, New London, Seymour,
Appleton	Sherwood, Ssiocton	Stockbridge, Wrightstown
	Beaver Dam, Burnett, Columbus, Fox Lake,	
	Horicon, Juneau, Randolph, Reeseville,	Cambria, Clyman, Fall River,
Beaver Dam	Waupun	Hustisford, Mayville,
	Beloit, Bergen, Clinton, Janesville,	
Beloit	Orfordville, So Beloit, Ill, So Bergen, Ill	Footville
	Big Bend, Aledonia, Cedarburg, Hartland,	
	Menomonee Falls,	
	Merton, Milwaukee, Mukwonago, Muskego,	Burlington ,Eagle, East Troy,
	North Lake, Pewaukee, Sussex, Thiensville,	Genesee, No Prairie, Union
Big Bend	Waukesha	Grove, Waterford, Wind Lake
		Big Bend, Bristol, East Troy,
		Elkhorn, Genoa City,Lake
		Geneva, Mukwonago, Salem,
	Burlington, Bohners Lake, Waterford,	Silver Lake, Trevor, Twin
Burlington	Wheatland	Lakes, Union Grove, Wind Lake

3.3 Local Calling Areas

3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas (continued)

Evolungo	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Clauser Fox Loke
		Clyman, Fox Lake, Hustisford, Lomira,
		Mayville, Oakfield,
	Burnett, Beaver Dam, Horicon,	Randolph, Reeseville,
Burnett	Juneau	Theresa, Waupun
Durnett	Caledonia, Big Bend, Cedarburg,	Theresa, waupun
	Hartland, Menomonee Falls,	
	Merton, Milwaukee, Muskego, North	
	Lake, Pewaukee, Racine, Sussex,	Parkside, Somers,
Caledonia	Thiensville, Union Grove, Waukesha	Waterford, Wind Lake
Carcaoma	Cedarburg, Big Bend, Caledonia,	Waterford, Wind Lake
	Cedarburg, Hartland, Menomonee	Belgium, Hubertus,
	Falls, Merton, Milwaukee, Muskego,	Jackson, Newburg, Port
	North Lake, Pewaukee, Sussex,	Washington, Waubeka,
Cedarburg	Thiensville, Waukesha	West Bend
	Chippewa Falls, Cadott, Eagle Point,	Bloomer, Elk Mound, Fall
Chippewa Falls	Eau Claire, Elk Lake, Jim Falls	Creek
	,	Cambria, Clyman,
		Randolph, Reeseville, Rio,
Columbus	Columbus, Beaver Dam, Fall River	Waterloo
	Delavan, Darien, Elk Horn, Lake	Bergen, Sharon, So Bergen,
Delavan	Geneva, Walworth, Williams Bay	So Sharon, Whitewater
		Denmark, Kaukauna, Little
	De Pere, Green Bay, Oneida,	Chute, Millcenter, New
De Pere	Wayside, Wrightstown	Franken, Seymour
	Eau Claire, Augusta, Chippewa Falls,	
	Cleghorn, Elk lake, Elk Mound, Fall	
Eau Claire	Creek, Rock Falls	Downsville, Mondovi
		Baldwin, Elmwood,
	Ellsworth, Bay City, Hager City,	Maidenrock, Plum city,
Ellsworth	Prescott, River Falls	Spring Vly
		Albany, Belleville,
		Brodhead, Brooklyn,
		Edgerton, Janesville,
F '11		Monticello, Oregon,
Evansville	Evansville, Footville	Orfordvl, Stoughton

3.3 Local Calling Areas

3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas (continued)

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Calling Area
Fondou Lake	Cambelspt, Eden, Fondou Lake, Johnsburg, Llomira, Mt Calvary, Oakfield, Rosendale, St. Cloud, Van Dyne	Brandon, Waupun
Fort Atkinson	Fort Atkinson, Jefferson, Sullivan, Whitewater	Johnson Creek, Lake Mills, Palmyra
Genoa City	Genoa City, Lake Geneva, Twin Lakes	Bohners Lake, Bristol, Burlington, Salem, Silverlake, Trevor, Walworth, Wheatland, Williams Bay
Green Bay	Green Bay, Abrams, Denmark, De Pere, Krakow, Luxemburg, Mill Center, New Franken, Oneida, Pulaski, Seymour, Wayside	Wrightstown
Hartford	Hartford, Neosho, Slinger	Allenton, Horicon, Hubertus, Hustisford, Jackson, Kewaskum, Lebanon, Mapleton, Mayville, Merton, North Lake, Sussex, Theresa, West Bend
Hartland	Hartland, Big Bend, Caledonia, Cedarburg, Delafield, Menomonee Falls, Merton, Milwaukee, Muskego, North Lake, Oconomowoc, Pewaukee, Pussex, Thiensville, Waukesha	Dousman, Genesee, Hubertus, Mapleton, No Prairie, Sullivan
Horicon	Horicon, Beaver Dam, Burnett, Juneau, Mayville	Allenton, Clyman, Hartford, hustisford, Lebanon, Lomira, Neosho, Reeseville, Theresa, Waupun
Hortonville	Hortonville, Appleton, New Nondon	Bear Creek, Black Creek, Fremont, Larsen, Neenah, Readfield, Shiocton, Weyauwega
Houlton	Noulton, Nudson, St.Croix Beach, Mn, Stillwater, Mn	New Richmnd, Roberts, Somerset

3.3 Local Calling Areas

3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas (continued)

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Calling Area
		Allenton, Cedarburg,
		Delafield, Hartford,
		Hartland, Mapleton, Neosho,
		North Lake, Pewaukee,
	Hubertus, Jackson, Menomonee	Thiensville, Waukesha, West
Hubertus	Falls, Merton, Singer, Sussex	Bend
	Houlton, Hudson, Riverfalls,	Hammond, New Richmnd,
Hudson	Roberts, St.Croix Bch, Mn	Somerset
		Allenton, Cedarburg,
		Hartford, Kewaskum,
		Menomonee Falls, Merton,
		Newburg, Port Washington,
	Hubertus, Jackson, Slinger, West	Sussex, Thiensville,
Jackson	Bend	Waubeka
	Beloit, Clinton, Edgerton, Footville;	
	Janesville, Milton, Orfordville,	
Janesville	Richmond	Evansville
		Lake Mills, Palmyra,
	Ft Atkinson, Jefferson, Johnson	Waterloo, Watertown,
Jefferson	Creek, Sullivan	Whitewater
Jeffelson	Creek, Bullivan	Clyman, Fox Lake,
		Hustisford, Lebanon,
		Mayville, Neosho,
	Beaver Dam, Burnett, Horicon,	Reeseville, Theresa,
Juneau	Juneau Juneau	Watertown, Waupun;
		,
	Appleton, Kaukauna, Little Chute,	De Pere, Neenah, Stockbdg,
Kaukauna	Sherwood, Wrightstown	Wayside
TXUUNUUIU	Shorwood, Wrightstown	11 ayside
	Bristol, Kenosha, Parkside, Salem,	
Kenosha	Somers	Racine, Union Grove
	Algoma, Casco, Kewaunee, Tisch	
Kewaunee	Mills	Denmark, Luxemburg
		Bohners Lake, Burlington,
	Delavan, Elkhorn, Genoa City Lake	Darien, East Troy, Silver
Lake Geneva	Geneva, Walworth, Williams Bay	Lake, Twin Lakes, Wheatland;

3.3 Local Calling Areas

3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas (continued)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
Exchange	Auditional Exchanges	Black Creek, De Pere, Neenah,
		Oneida, Seymour, Sherwood,
Little Chute	Appleton, Kaukauna, Little Chute	Stockbridge, Wrightstown
Little Cliute	Belleville, Blackearth, Brooklyn,	Stockbridge, Wrightstown
	Cottage Grove, Cross Plains, De Forest,	
	Deerfield, Lodi, Madison, Marshall,	
	McFarland, Middleton, Mount Horeb,	
	Mt Vernon, Oregon, Poynette,	
	Stoughton, Sun Prairie, Verona,	
Madison	Waunakee	Cambridge, Mazomanie
Wadison	Collins, Manitowoc, Mishicot,	Camoriage, Wazomanie
	Newton, Newtonburg, Reedsville, St	
	Nazianz, Two Rivers, Valders,	
Manitowoc	Whitelaw	Cleveland
Wantowoc	Winteraw	Allenton, Beaver Dam,
		Burnett, Campbellsport,
		Clyman, Hartford, Hustisford,
		Juneau, Lomira, Neosho,
Mayville	Horicon, Mayville, Theresa	Oakfield, Waupun
Wayvine	Tioricon, Wayvine, Theresa	Allenton, Beaver Dam,
		Burnett, Campbellsport,
		Clyman, Hartford, Hustisford,
Mayville - Village of		Juneau, Lomira, Oakfield,
Iron Ridge	Horicon, Mayville, Theresa, Neosho	Waupun
Holl Ridge	Big Bend, Caledonia, Cedarburg,	**aupun
	Hartland, Hubertus, Menomonee	
	Falls, Merton, Milwaukee, Muskego,	
	North Lake, Pewaukee, Sussex,	
Menomonee Falls	Thiensville, Waukesha	Jackson, Slinger
1.13Homonee 1 unio	Boyceville, Colfax, Downsville, Elk	turing, singer
	Mound, Knapp, Menomonie,	Eau Galle, Elk Lake, Elmwood,
Menomonie	Springlake, Wheeler	Menard
×	Big Bend, Caledonia, Cedarburg,	
	Hartland, Hubertus, Menomonee	Delafield, Dousman, Genesee,
	Falls, Merton, Milwaukee, Muskego,	Hartford, Jackson, Mapleton,
	North Lake, Pewaukee, Sussex,	Neosho, NoPprairie,
Merton	Thiensville, Waukesha	Oconomowoc, Slinger

Issue Date: August 14, 2015 Effective Date: August 15, 2015

Andoni Economou COO & EVP 55 Water Street, 32nd Floor New York, NY 10041

3.3 Local Calling Areas

3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas (continued)

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community Calling
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Area
	Big Bend, Caledonia, Cedarburg,	
	Hartland, Menomonee Falls, Merton,	
	Milwaukee, Muskego, North Lake,	
	Pewaukee, Ssussex, Thiensville,	
Milwaukee	Waukesha	Racine, Wind Lake
Muskego	Big Bend, Caledonia, Cedarburg,	Genesee, Mukwonago, No
	Hartland, Menomonee Falls,	Prairie, Union Grove,
	Merton, Milwaukee, Muskego,	Waterford, Wind Lake
	North Lake, Pewaukee, Sussex,	
	Thiensville, Waukesha,	
Neenah- Menasha	Appleton, Larsen, Neenah,	Hortonville, Kaukauna, Little
		Chute, Oshkosh, Sherwood,
		Stockbdg, Winneconne
New London	Bear Creek, Hortonville, Readfield	Appleton, Blackcreek, Fremont,
		Larsen, Manawa, Ogdensburg,
		Shiocton, Weyauwega
Newburg	Newburg, Pt Washington, Waubeka,	Allenton, Belgium, Cascade,
	West Bend,	Cedarburg, Cedar Grove,
		Jackson, Kewaskum, Random
		Lake, Slinger, Thiensville
North Lake	Big Bend, Caledonia, Cedarburg,	Delafield, Dousman, Genesee,
	Hartland, Mapleton, Menomonfls,	Hartford, Hubertus, Lebanon,
	Merton, Milwaukee, Muskego,	Neosho, No Prairie, Slinger,
	North Lake, Oconomowoc,	Sullivan
	Pewaukee, Sussex, Thiensville,	
	Waukesha,	
Oconomowoc	Delafield, Dousman, Hartland,	Genesee, Johnson Crk, Lebanon,
	Mapleton, North Lake,	Merton, Neosho, No Prairie,
	Oconomowoc, Sullivan	Pewaukee, Sussex, Watertown,
		Waukesha,
Omro	Omro, Oshkosh, Winneconne,	Berlin, Larsen, Poy Sippi, Ripon
Oshkosh	Omro, Oshkosh, Pickett, Van Dyne,	Larsen, Neenah,
	Winneconne,	
Parkside	Kenosha, Parkside, Pacine, Somers	Bristol, Caledonia, Union Grove

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas (continued)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
Pewaukee	Big Bend, Caledonia,	Dousman, Genesee, Hubertus,
Tewaukee	Cedarburg, Delafield, Hartland,	Mapleton, No Prairie, Oconomowoc
	Menomonee Falls, Merton,	Wapieton, 140 France, Oconomowoc
	Milwaukee, Muskego, North	
	Lake, Pewaukee, Sussex,	
	Thiensville, Waukesha	
Port Washigtn	Belgium, Newburg, Port	Cedarburg, Cedar Grove, Jackson,
Tore wasingth	Washigton, Waubeka	Random Lake, Thiensville, West Bend
Racine	Caledonia, Parkside, Racine,	Kenosha, Milwaukee, Somers
Racine	Union Grove	Kenosna, winwaukee, Somers
Richmond		Clinton Milton
Kiciiiioiiu	Janesville, Richmond, Whitewater	Clinton, Milton,
Directolle		Doldwin Hommond
Riverfalls	Ellsworth, Hudson, Prescott,	Baldwin, Hammond
D 1 4	River Falls, Roberts	D 11 ' II I II I N
Roberts	Hudson, Riverfalls, Roberts	Baldwin, Hammond, Houlton, New
		Richmond, Somerset, Star Prairie,
		Woodville
Shebogan falls	Howards Grove, Shebogan Falls,	Cascade, Cedargrove, Cleveland,
	Sheboygan	Elkhart Lake, Greenbush, Oostburg,
		Plymouth, Random Lake
Sheboygan	Cedar Grove, Cleveland,	Pymouth
	Howards Grove, Oostburg,	
	Shebogn Falls, Sheboygan	
Somers	Kenosha, Parkside, Somers,	Bristol, Caledonia, Racine, Salem,
	Union Grove	Trevor
Stevens Point	Polonia, Stevens Point	Almond, Amherst, Elderon, Hatley,
		Junction City, Mosinee, Nekoosa,
		Plainfield, Pt Edwards, Rosholt,
		Rudolph, Wiscosn Rapids
Stoughton	Madison, Stoughton	Brooklyn, Cambridge, Cottage Grove,
_	_	Deerfield, Edgerton, Evansville, Mc
		Farland, Oregon
	Baileys Harbor, Brussels, Egg	
	Harbor, Forestville, Jacksonport,	
Sturgeon Bay	Little Sturgen, Sturgeon Bay	Algoma

Issue Date: August 14, 2015

Effective Date: August 15, 2015

Andoni Economou COO & EVP 55 Water Street, 32nd Floor New York, NY 10041

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas (continued)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Big Bend, Caledonia,	
	Cedarburg, Hartland, Hubertus,	
	Menomonee Falls, Merton,	
	Milwaukee, Muskego, North	Delafield, Dousman, Genesee, Hrtford,
	Lake, Pewaukee, Sussex,	Jackson, Mapleton, Oconomowoc,
Sussex	Thiensville, Waukesha	Slinge,
	Big Bend, Caledonia,	
	Cedarburg, Hartland,	
	Menomonee Falls, Merton,	
	Milwaukee, Muskego, North	
	Lake, Pewaukee, Sussex,	Hubertus, Jackson, Newburg, Port
Thiensville	Thiensville, Waukesha	Wshington
		Big Bend, Bohners Lake, Bristol,
		Brlington, Kenosha, Muskego,
		Parkside, Salem, Silverlake, Trevor,
	Caledonia, Racine, Somers,	Twin Lakes, Waterford, Wheatland,
Union Grove	Union Grove	Wind Lake
	Fond Du Lac, Oshkosh, Van	
Van Dyne	Dyne	
	Cyman, Johnson Creek,	Hustisford, Jefferson, Juneau, Lake
	Llebanon, Reseville,	Mills, Mapleton, Neosho,
Watertown	Watertown,	Oonomowoc, Sullivan, Waterloo
	Big Bend, Caledonia,	
	Cedarburg, Delafield, Genesee,	
	Hartland, Menomonee Falls,	
	Merton, Milwaukee,	
	Mukwonago, Muskego, No	
	Prairie, North Lake, Pewaukee,	Dousman, Eagle, Hubertus,
Waukesha	Sussex, Thiensville, Waukesha	Oconomowoc, Wind Lake
		Almond, Amherst, Fremont, iola,
	Scandinvia, Waupaca,	Manawa, Ogdensburg, Poy Sippi, Wild
Waupaca	Weyauwega	Rose
		Burnett, Fondu Lac, Fox Lake,
		Horicon, Juneau, Lomira, Markesan,
		Mayville,Oakfield,Randolph
Waupun	Beaver Dam, Brandon, Waupun	Rosendale, Theresa

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.1 AT&T Service Areas (continued)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Allenton, Jackson, Kewaskum,	Campbellsport, Cdarburg, Hartford,
	Newburg, Slinger, Waubeka,	Hubertus, Port Washington, Random
West Bend	West Bend	Lake, Theresa
	Ft Atkinson, Palmyra,	Delavan, Eagle, Elkhorn, Jefferson,
Whitewater	Richmond, Whitewater	Sullivan
	Delavan, Elkhorn, Lake Geneva,	Bohners Lake, Darien, Genoa City,
Williams Bay	Walworth, Williams Bay	Sharon, So Sharon
		Berlin, Fremont, Larsen, Neenah, Poy
Winneconne	Omro, Oshkosh, Winneconne	Sippi, Readfield
	De Pere, Kaukauna, Wayside,	Appleton, Green Bay, Little Chute,
Wrightstown	Wrightstown	Oneida, Seymour, Sherwood

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.2 Frontier North

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Calling Area
		Brooks, Mauston, Necedah
Adams	Monroe Center	Westfield, Wisconsin Dells
		Campbellsport, Hartford,
		Horicorn, Hubertus,
		Hustisford, Jackson,
		Kewaskum, Lomira,
		Mayville, Neosho, Newburg
Allenton	West Bend	Slinger, Theresa
	Birnamwood, Elcho, Matoon,	Gleason, Hatley, Merrill,
Antigo	Pickerel, White Lake	Neopit
		•
	Apple Canyon Lake, Ill, Apple River, Ill, Warren, WI,	
Apple River	Warren, Ill	
Apple River	wanen, m	Black Earth, Cross Plains,
		Dodgeville, Lone Rock
		Mazomanie. Mount Horeb
		Plain, Ridgeway, Sauk City
Arena	Spring Green	Witwen
Athens	Wausau	Witwell
Autons	Egg Harbor, Jacksonport, Sister	
Baileys Harbor	Bay, Sturgeon Bay	
Dancys Harbor	Bay, Sturgeon Bay	Cascade, Cedarburg, Cedar
		Grove, Newburg, Oostburg,
Belgium	Port Washington, Random Lake	Waubeka
201510111	1 ozt 11 domington, Rundom Dake	Albany, Brooklyn,
		Evansville, Monticello, Mt.
		Horeb, Mt. Vernon, Oregon,
Belleville	Madison, New Glarus	Verona
		Bowler, Eldron, Tigerton,
Birnamwood	Antigo, Hatley, Mattoon, Wausau	Wittenberg
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	Boax, Cazenovia, Hillsboro
		Ithaca, La Farge, Lime
Bloom City	Richland Center	Ridge, Sabin, Viola, Yuba

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.2 Frontier North

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Calling Area
		Baraboo, Brooks, Endeavor
Briggsville	Portage, Wisconsin Dells	Oxford, Packwaukee
		Chilton, Collins, New Holstein,
Brillion	Hilbert, Reedsville	St. Nazianz, Valers, Whitelaw
		Bohners Lake, Burlington,
		Genoa City, Parkside, Silver
		Lake, Somers, Trevor, Twin
		Lakes, Union Grove,
Bristol	Kenosha, Salem	Wheatland
		Albany, Evansville, Footville,
		Juda, Monroe,
Brodhead	Orfordville	Monticello
		Albany, Belleville, Edgerton,
		Evansville, Footville,
		McFarland, Monticello, New
		Glarus, Stoughton,
Brooklyn	Madison, Oregon	Verona
		Cottage Grove, Edgerton,
		Madison, Marshall, McFarland,
Cambridge	Deerfield	Stoughton
		Allenton, Cascade, Greenbush,
		Lomira, Mayville, Oakfield,
		Theresa
Campbellsport	Eden, Fond du Lac, Kewaskum	West Bend
		Belgium, Campbellsport, Cedar
		Grove, Elkhart Lake,
		Greenbush, Howards Grove,
		Kewaskum, Newburg,
		Oostburg, Sheboygan Falls, St.
G 1	DI 4 D 1 T 1	Cloud,
Cascade	Plymouth, Random Lake	Waubeka
		Belgium, Cascade, Newburg
		Plymouth, Port Washington,
Codon C	Ocathama Chaharra	Random Lake, Sheboygan
Cedar Grove	Oostburg, Sheboygan	Falls, Waubeka
		Brillion, Collins, Elkhart Lake,
		Johnsburg, Kiel, Mt. Calvary,
Chilton	Hilbort Nov. Holstein Ctarlibull	Reedsville, St. Cloud, St.
Chilton	Hilbert, New Holstein, Stockbridge	Nazianz, Valders

Issue Date: August 14, 2015 Effective Date: August 15, 2015

Andoni Economou COO & EVP 55 Water Street, 32nd Floor New York, NY 10041

3.3

Local Calling Areas (continued) 3.3.2 Frontier North (continued)

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community Calling
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Area
Clinton	Beloit, Bergen, Janesville	Milton, Richmond
		Beaver Dam, Burnett, Columbus,
		Horicon, Hustisford, Juneau,
Clyman	Lebanon, Watertown	Mayville, Neosho, Reeseville
	Dodgeville, Highland,	Avoca, Mineral Point
Cobb	Montfort	
	Dorchester, Loyal, Owen,	Athens, Edgar, Stetsonville
Colby	Spencer	Straford
		Cambridge, Deerfield, De Forest,
		Marshall, McFarland, Middleton,
		Oregon, Stoughton, Sun Prairie,
Cottage Grove	Madison	Waunakee
		Bergen, Elkhorn, Lake Geneva,
		Sharon
		South Bergen, South Sharon,
Darien	Delavan	Walworth, Williams Bay
		Cottage Grove, Edgerton,
		Marshall, McFarland, Stoughton,
Deerfield	Cambridge, Madison	Sun Prairie
	Cobb, Hollanda Le, Mineral	Arena, Highland, Lone Roch,
Dodgeville	Point, Ridgeway	Montfort, Spring Green
	Land O' Lakes, Phelps,	Lake Tomahawk, Minocqua,
Eagle River	Sayner, Three Lakes	Sugar Camp
		Greenbush, Johnsburg,
		Kewaskum, Lomira, Mt. Calvary,
Eden	Campbellsport, Fond du Lac	Oakfield, St. Cloud, Theresa
		Athens, Colby, Marathon,
Edgar	Wausau	Mosinee, Stratford
		Brooklyn, Cambridge, Deerfield,
		Evansville
Edgerton	Janesville	Footville, Milton, Stoughton
	Baileys Harbor, Sister Bay,	
Egg Harbor	Sturgeon Bay	Jacksonport
		Cascade, Chilton, Cleveland
		Greenbush, Howards Grove,
		Johnsburg, Kiel, Mt. Calvary
		New Holstein, Sheboygan Falls,
Elkhart Lake	Plymouth	St. Cloud, St. Nazianz

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.2 Frontier North

5.5.2 Frontier N	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Calling Area
		Campbellsport, Cascade, Eden,
		Elkhart Lake, Howards Grove,
		Johnsburg, Kiel, Mt. Calvary,
		New Holstein
Greenbush	Plymouth	St. Cloud, Sheboygan Falls
	Birnamwood, Elderon,	Antigo, Merrill, Mosinee,
Hatley	Wausau	Stevens Point, ittenberg
		Collins, New Holstein,
*****		Reedsville, St. Nazianz,
Hilbert	Brillion, Chilton, Sherwood	Valders
		Argyle, Blanchardville,
		Darlington, Mount Horeb,
Hollandale	Dodgovillo Minoral Boint	Mount Vernon, New Glarus,
Hollandale	Dodgeville, Mineral Point	Ridgeway Allenton, Beaver Dam, Burnett,
		Clyman, Hartford, Horicon,
		Juneau, Lebanon, Mapleton,
		Reeseville, Theresa,
Hustisford	Neosho	Watertown, Mayville
Trastistora	Treosno	Avoca, Bloom City, Boaz
		Cazenovia, Muscoda, Lime
		Ridge, Loganville, Lone
Ithaca	Richland Center	Roche, Plain, Spring Green
Jacksonport	Baileys Harbor, Sturgeon Bay	Egg Harbor, Sister Bay
Jacksonport	Fond du Lac, Mt. Calvary,	Chilton, Eden, Elkhart Lake,
	New	Greenbush, Kiel, St. Cloud
Johnsburg	Holstein	Greenoush, Thei, St. Cloud
		Allenton, Slinger, Cascade,
		Theresa, Eden, Waubeka,
		Hartford, Jackson, Lomira,
Kewaskum	Campbellsport, West Bend	Newburg, Random Lake
		Chilton, Cleveland, Collins,
		Elkhart Lake, Greenbush,
		Howards Grove, Johnsburg,
		Mt. Calvary, Newton,
		Plymouth, St. Cloud, St.
Kiel	New Holstein	Nazianz, Valders

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.2 Frontier North

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
8		Ft. Atkinson, Jefferson,
Lake Mills	Johnson Creek	Waterloo, Watertown
	Eagle River, North Land O'	Boulder Junction, Phelps
Land O' Lakes	Lakes, MI	Sayner
		Hartford, Horicon, Hustisford,
		Johnson Creek, Juneau,
		Mapleton, Neosho, North Lak,
Lebanon	Clyman, Watertown	Oconomowoc, Reeseville
		Bloom City, Cazenovia, Ithaca,
		La Valle, Lone Rock, North
		Freedom, Plain, Richland
Lime Ridge	Loganville, Reedsburg	Center, Wonewoc, Yuba
		Baraboo, Cross Plains, De
		Forest, Merrimac, Poynette,
Lodi	Madison	Sauk City, Waunakee
		Baraboo, Cazenovia, Ithaca
		La Valle, North Freedom,
Loganville	Lime Ridge, Plain, Reedsburg	Witwen
		Allenton, Burnett,
		Campbellsport, Eden, Horicon,
		Kewaskum, Mayville, Oakfield,
Lomira	Fond du Lac, Theresa	Waupun
	D: 11 10 4 0 :	Arena, Avoca, Dodgeville,
I D I	Richland Center, Spring	Highland, Ithaca, Lime Ridge,
Lone Rock	Green	Muscoda, Plain
		Chili, Granton, Marshfield,
Loyal	Colby, Greenwood, Spencer	Neilsville, Owen, Mill Creek
		Brooks, La Valle, Reedsburg,
Lyndon Station	Mauston	Wisconsin Dells
		Delafield, Douseman, Genesee,
		Hartford, Hartland, Hubertus,
		Hustisford, Lebanon, Merton,
		Neosho, Pewaukee, Slinger,
Mapleton	North Lake, Oconomowoc	Sullivan, Sussex, Watertown

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.2 Frontier North

Б. 1	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Calling Area
Manualtan	***	Athens, Edgar, Merrill,
Marathon	Wausau	Mosiness, Stratford
		Cambridge, Cottage Grove
M 1 11	M. 1 XXV 1	Deerfield, De Forest,
Marshall	Madison, Waterloo	McFarland, Sun Prairie
M 1 C 11	Auburndale, Chili, Lindsey,	Granton, Junciton City,
Marshfield	Spencer, Stratford	Loyal, Mosinee
Mattoon	Antigo, Birmamwood	Bowler, Neopit, Wittenberg
		Adams, Camp Douglas,
		Elroy
		Kendall, La Valle, Necedah,
		Reedsburg, Wisconsin Dells,
Mauston	Lyndon Station, New Lisbon	Wonewoc
		Brooklyn, Cambridge,
		Cottage Grove, Deerfield,
		Marshall, Middleton, Oregon,
		Stoughton, Sun Prairie,
McFarland	Madison	Verona, Waunakee
		Antigo, Athens, Brantwood,
		Hatley, Marathon, Medford,
Merrill	Gleason, Wausau	Tomahawk
		Lodi, North Freedom,
		Portage
Merrimac	Baraboo, Sauk City	Poynette, Waunakee, Witwen
		Belmont, Cobb, Darlington,
Mineral Point	Dodgeville, Hollandale	Montfort, Ridgeway
		Brantwood, Crescent Lake,
		Eagle River, LakeTomahawk,
2.6	Boulder Junction, Lac du	Manitowish Waters, Presque
Minocqua	Flambeau, Sayner	Isle, Tomahawk
	Manitowoc, Tisch Miles,	Newtonburg, Whitelaw
Mishicot	Two Rivers	
Monroe Center	Adams	Necedah

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued) 3.3.2 Frontier North

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Calling Area
		Endeavor, Oxford, Pardeeville,
Montello	Packwaukee, Westfield	Portage
		Chilton, Eden, Elkhart Lake,
		Greenbush, Kiel, New
Mt. Calvary	Fond du Lac, Johnsburg	Holstein, Plymouth, St. Cloud
		Allenton, Clyman, Horicon,
		Hubertus, Juneau, Labanon,
		Mapleton, Maybille, Merton,
		North Lake, Oconomowoc,
Neosho	Hartford, Hustisford	Slinger, Theresa, Watertown
		Brillion, Collins, Elkhart Lake,
		Greenbush, Hilbert, Mt.
		Calvary, Plymouth, Reedsville,
X		St. Cloud
New Holstein	Chilton, Johnsburg, Kiel	St. Nazianz, Valders
		Brandon, Burnett,
		Campbellsport
0.15.11	F 11 7	Eden, Lomira, Mayville,
Oakfield	Fond du Lac	Rosendal, Theresa, Waupun
		Belgium, Cascade, Howards
		Grove, Plymouth, Random
Ocathyma	Codon Chava Shahayaan	Lake, Sheboygan Falls, Waubeka
Oostburg	Cedar Grove, Sheboygan	
		Albany, Velleville, Cottage
		Grove, Evansville, McFarland, Middleton, Mt. Vernon, New
Oregon	Brooklyn, Madison	Glarus, Stoughton, Verona
Oregon	Beloit, Brodhead, Footville,	Giards, Stoughton, Verolla
Orfordville	Janesville	Albany, Evansville, Juda
OHORINIC	Janesvine	Dorchester, Loyal, Medford,
Owen	Colby, Greenwood	Stetsonville
	Portage, Kingston	
Pardeeville	Portage, Kingston	Endeavor, Montello, Poynette
Dhalns	Eagle Diver Smolrey Lelra MI	Land O' Lakes, Laona,
Phelps	Eagle River, Smokey Lake, MI	Three Lakes
Dialramal	Antico	Crandon, Elcho, Lakewood
Pickerel	Antigo	Wabeno, White Lake
	Logonvillo Sarina Casa	Arena, Ithaca, Lime Ridge,
Dloin	Loganville, Spring Green,	Lone Rock, Mazomanie, North
Plain	Witwen	Freedom, Sauk City

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.2 Frontier North

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Calling Area
		Cedar Grove, Howards Grove,
		Kiel, Mt. Calvary, New
		Holstein, Oostburg, Random
	Cascade, Elkhart Lake,	Lake, St. Cloud, Sheboygan,
Plymouth	Greenbush	Sheboygan Falls
		Baraboo, Endeavor, Merrimac
	D: "" D : ""	Montello, Poynette, Wisconsin
Portage	Briggsville, Pardeeville	Dells
		Cedar Grove, Kewaskum,
		Newburg, Oostburg, Plymouth,
Random Lake	Palgium Casaada Waybaka	Port Washington, Sheboygan
Kandoni Lake	Belgium, Cascade, Waubeka	Falls, West Bend Baraboo, Lyndon Station,
	Cazenovia, LaValle, Lime	Mauston, North Freedom,
Reedsburg	Ridge, Loganville	Wisconsin Dells, Wonewoc
Recusourg	Ridge, Loganvine	Chilton, Hilbert, New Holstein,
	Brillion, Collins, Manitowoc,	Newtonburg, St. Nazainz,
Reedsville	Whitelaw	Valders
		Avoca, Blue River, Cazenovia,
	Bloom City, Boaz, Ithaca, Lone	Lime Ridge, Muscode, Viola,
Richland Center	Rock, Sabin	Yuba
		Arena, Black Earth,
		Blanchardville, Hollandale,
		Mazomanie, Mineral Point,
Ridgeway	Dodgeville, Mt. Horeb	Spring Green
		Cascade, Chilton, Eden,
		Elkhart Lake, Greenbush,
G. G1 1	F 11 7	Johnsburg, Kiel, Mt. Calvary,
St.Cloud	Fond du Lac	New Holstein, Plymouth
	Deiestal Wannaha Cilara Lal	Bohners Lake, Burlington,
Salem	Bristol, Kenosha, Silver Lake,	Genoa City, Somers, Union
Salelli	Trevor, Twin Lakes	Grove, Waterford, Wheatland
		Arena, Baraboo, Black Earth, Cross Plains, Lodi, Mazomanie
		North Freedom, Plain,
Souk City	Marrimaa Witwan	Waunakee
Sauk City	Merrimac, Witwen	Boulder Junction, Lake
Sayner	Eagle River, Minocqua	Tomahawk, Land O' Lakes
Baynor	Lagic Kiver, Millocqua	10manawk, Land O Lakes

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.2 Frontier North

	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	Calling Area
		Bohners Lake, Bristol,
		Burlington, Genoa City,
		Lake Geneva, Union
		Grove, Waterford,
Silver Lake	Salem, Trevor, Twin Lakes	Wheatland
		Jacksonport, Washington
Sister Bay	Baileys Harbor, Egg Harbor	Island
		Allenton, Kewaskum,
		Mapleton, Menomonee,
		Falls, Merton, Neosho,
	Hartford, Hubertus, Jackson,	Newburg, North Lake,
Slinger	West Bend	Sussex, Theresa
	Colby, Loyal, Marshfield, Mill	Chili, Granton, Greenwood,
Spencer	Creek	Lindsey, Stratford
		Avoca, Dodgeville, Ithaca,
		Mazomanie, Ridgeway,
Spring Green	Arena, Lone Rock, Plain	Witwen
		Auburndale, Colby, Edgar,
		Marathon, Mosinee,
Stratford	Marshfield, Mill Creek	Spencer
		Cottage Grove, Deerfield,
		De Forest, Marshall,
		McFarland, Middleton,
Sun Prairie	Madison	Waunakee
		Allenton, Burnett,
		Campbellsport, Eden,
		Hartford, Horicorn,
		Hustisford, Juneau,
		Kewaskum, Neosho,
Thomas	Lamina Manudilla	Oakfield, Slinger, Waupun,
Theresa	Lomira, Mayville	West Bend
Three Lakes	Facila Divien	Argonne, Laona, Phelps,
Three Lakes	Eagle River	Rhinelander, Sugar Camp
		Brantwood, Crescent Lake,
Tomahawk		Gleason, Merrill,
TOIHanawk		Minocqua, Rhinelander

Local Calling Areas (continued) 3.3.2 Frontier North 3.3

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
8	9	Bohners Lake, Bristol,
	Antioch, Illinois, Salem, Silver	Burlington, Genoa City, Somers,
Trevor	Lake, Twin Lakes	Union Grove, Wheatland
		D.1. V.1. D.11
		Bohners Lake, Bristol,
Twin Lalras	Genoa City, Salem, Silver Lake,	Burlington, Lake Geneva, Union
Twin Lakes	Trevor	Grove, Waterford, Wheatland
Two Rivers	Manitowoc, Mishicot	Newton, Newtonburg, Tisch Mills, Whitelaw
I WO KIVEIS	Delavan, Lake Geneva, Sharon,	Bergen, Darien, Elkhorn, Genoa
Walworth	Williams Bay	City, South Bergen
Warworth	Apple River, WI, Apple	City, South Bergen
	Canyon Lake, ILL, Apple River,	
Warren	ILL, Warren, ILL	Warren
Washington	7 7	
Island		Sister Bay
		Columbus, Fall River, Jefferson,
		Johnson Creek, Lake Mills,
Waterloo	Marshall	Reeseville, Watertown
		Belgium, Cascade, Cedarburg,
	Newburg, Port Washington,	Cedar Grove, Jackson,
Waubeka	Random Lake, West Bend	Kewaskum, Oostsburg
	Athens, Birnamwood, Edgar,	
	Elderon, Marathon,	
Wausau	Merrill, Mosinee	
XXX	36	Adams, Brooks, Endeavor,
Westfield	Montello	Oxford, Packwaukee
XX71 '. Y 1	A	Keshena, Lakewood, Neopit,
White Lake	Antigo	Pickerel
		Brillion, Collins, Mishicot,
		Newton, Newtonberg, St. Nazianz, Tisch Mills, Two Rivers,
Whitelaw	Manitowoc, Reedsville	Valders
** IIICIaw	Wantowoe, Recusvine	Adams, Baraboo, Brooks, Lyndon
		Station, Mauston, North Freedom,
		Oxford,
Wisconsin Dells	Briggsville	Portage, Reedsburg
		Arena, Baraboo, Black Earth
		Loganville, Mazomanie,
		Merrimac, North Freedom, Spring
Witwen	Plain, Sauk City	Green

Issue Date: August 14, 2015 Effective Date: August 15, 2015

Andoni Economou COO & EVP 55 Water Street, 32nd Floor New York, NY 10041

Local Calling Areas (continued) 3.3.3 Frontier Communications 3.3

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
Lachunge	Tructional Exercinges	Rhinelander, Pelican Lake,
Argonne	Crandon	Three Lakes, Laona
		Marion, Bonduel, Hortonville,
		Manawa, Nichols, Black
Bear Creek	New London, Clintonville	Creek, Shiocton
	,	Birnamwood, Elderon,
		Gresham, Marion, Mattoon,
Bowler	Wittenberg	Neopit
		Keshena, Suring, Gillett,
Cecil	Bonduel	Krakow, Oconto Falls, Pulaski
		Bonduel, Manawa, Nichols,
Clintonville	Bear Creek, Marion	Shawano, Shiocton
		Elcho, Wabeno, Pickerel,
Crandon	Laona, Argonne	Pelican Lake
	Sugar Camp, Lake Tomahawk,	
Crescent Lake	Rhinelander, Pelican Lake	Minocqua, Tomahawk
Elcho	Antigo, Pelican Lake	Crandon, Pickerel, Gleason
	E. Dubuque, IL, Dubuque, IA,	
Fairplay	Dickeyville, WI	
		Bowler, Keshena, Marion,
Gresham	Shawano	Neopit, Tigerton
		Bonduel, Cecil, Gillett,
		Gresham, White Lake,
Keshena	Neopit, Shawano	Lakewood, Suring
		Bear Creek, Bowler, Iola,
		Tigerton, Gresham, Manawa,
Lake Tomahawk	Clintonville	Ogdensburg, Shawano
		Durand, Strum, Rock Falls,
Marion	Eleva, Gilmanton, Modena	Cleghorn, Eau Claire
	F1 G11 3.5 .	Durand, Strum, Rock Falls,
Mondovi	Eleva, Gilmanton, Modena	Cleghorn, Eau Claire
Neopit		
		*Baldwin, Hudson, Houlton,
		Roberts, Glenwood City,
New Richmond	Star Prairie, Somerset	Hammond, Deer Park

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.2 Frontier North

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Rhinelander, Crescent, Elcho,	Argonne, Crandon,
Pelican Lake	Sugar Camp, Lake Tomahawk	Gleason
	Crescent, Pelican Lake, Sugar	Tomahawk, Three Lakes,
Rhinelander	Camp, Lake Tomahawk	Argonne, Gleason
		Medford, Perkinstown,
Rib Lake		Ogema, Brantwood
	Cecil, Bonduel, Gresham,	
Shawano	Keshena	Clintonville, Marion
		*Amery, Clear Lake, Deer
		Park, Dresser, Roberts,
Star Prairie	New Richmond	Osceola, Somerset
	Rhinelander, Crescent, Pelican	Eagle River, Lake
Sugar Camp	Lake	Tomahawk, Three Lakes
		Birnamwood, Elderon,
		Gresham, Iola, Marion,
Tigerton	Bowler, Wittenberg	Rosholt
	Liberty Pole, Westby, DeSota,	
	Genoa, LaFarge, Readstown,	Cashton, Chaseburg, Coon
Viroqua	Viola, Soldiers Grove	Valley

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Northfield, Pigeon Falls,	Black River Falls, Fairchild,
Almacenter	Taylor	Hixton, Merrillan
	Goodman, Laona, Twin	
Amberg	Bridge, Wabeno	Pembine, Wausaukee
	Blair, Cochrane, Ettrick,	
	Fountain City, Galesville,	Centerville, Independence,
Arcadia	Waumadee	Whitehall
	Blanchardville, Browntown,	
	Darlington, Gratiot,	
	Hollandale, Monroe,	
	Monticello, New Glarus, South	
Argyle	Wayne, Wiota, Woodford	
	La Pointe, Marengo, Mason,	
Ashland	Mellen	Bayfield, Benoit, Washburn
	Boyd, Cleghorn, Fairchild, Fall	
Augusta	Creek, Stanley, Thorp	Eau Claire, Osseo
	Blue River, Boaz, Cobb, Ithaca,	
	Lone Rock, Montfort, Richland	
Avoca	Center, Spring Green	Highland, Muscoda
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Cashton, Cataract, Coon	
	Valley, Fort McCoy, La	
Bangor	Crosse, Sparta, West Salem	Holmen, Mindoro
	Briggsville, Loganville, Lodi,	
	Portage, Reedsburg, Sauk City,	
Baraboo	Wisconsin Dells, Witwen	Merrimac, North Freedom
(M)	(M)	(M)
		Ashland, Benoit, La Pointe,
Bayfield	Cornucopia	Washburn
	Lake Nebagamon, Maple,	
Bennett	Poplar, Superior	Gordon, Solon Springs

(M) Material moved to Page 76.1.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
8	Belmont, Darlington, Dickeyville,	8
	Hazel Green, Platteville,	
Benton	Shullsburg	Cuba City
	Neskoro, Omro, Princeton,	Green Lake, Poy Sippi,
Berlin	Ripon, Winneconne	Redgranite
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Bear Creek, Hortonville, Little	
	Chute, New London, Oneida,	Appleton, Nichols,
Blackcreek	Shiocton	Seymour
Blair	Arcadia, Galesville	Ettrick, Taylor, Whitehall
		Alma Center, Hixton,
Blckrivfls		Melrose, Merrillan, Taylor
	Fennimore, Gays Mills, Montfort,	Blue River, Mt. Zion,
Boscobel	Mount Hope, Muscoda, Wauzeka	Steuben, Woodman
	Land O'Lakes, Manitowish	
	Waters, Presque Isle, Lac Du	
Boulderjct	Flambeau, Sayner	Minocqua
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Augusta, Cornell, Fall Creek,	
Boyd	Gilman, Jim Falls, Thorp	Cadott, Stanley
	Rosendale, Fond du Lac,	
	Markesan, Pickett, Oakfield, Fox	
Brandon	Lake	Waupun
	Merrill, Minocqua, Tomahawk,	
Brantwood	Rib Lake	Ogema, Prentice
	Algoma, Casco, Luxemburg, New	
Brussels	Franken	Sturgeon Bay

(M) Material moved to Page 76.1.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Cornell, Eagle Point, Fall Creek, Jim Falls, Stanley, Forestville,	
Cadott	Brussels, New Frankin	Boyd, Chippewa Falls
Cambria	Kingston, Fall River, Markesan, Fox Lake, Beaver Dam, Columbus	Randolph and Rio
Casco		Luxemburg, Algoma, Kewaunee
Cashton	Bangor, Coon Valley, La Farge, Viroqua	Cataract, Norwalk, Ontario, Sparta, Wilton, Westby
Cataract	Bangor, Melrose, Mindoro	Cashton, Norwalk, Ontario, Sparta, Wilton
Centervl	Ettrick, Fountain City, Holmen	Arcadia, Galesville, Trempealeau
(M)	(M)	(M)
Chetek	Barron, Rice Lake, Ridgeland, Weyerhauser	Cameron, Canton, Dallas, Long Lake, New Auburn, Sand Creek
~ .	Augusta, Fall Creek, Mondovi, Osseo, Pleasantville, Rock Falls,	
Cleghorn	Strum	Eau Claire, Eleva
Coverton		
	Crivitz, Harmony, Lakewood, Oconto, Oconto Falls, Peshtigo,	
Coleman	Suring	Lena
(M)	(M)	(M)
Cornell	Boyd, Cadott, Eagle Point, Gilman, Jim Falls, Long Lake, Sheldon	Holcombe

(M) Material moved to Page 76.1.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Coleman, Harmony, Lakewood,	
Crivitz	Marinette	Twin Bridge, Wausaukee
	Barron, Clayton, Fox Creek,	
	Lewis, Luck, Rice Lake, Sarona,	
Cumberland	Shell Lake, Turtle Lake	Almena
Dairyland		Danbury, Webb Lake, Webster
		Danbury, Webb Lake,
Danbury	Siren, Grantsburg	Webster
Darlington	Argyle, Belmont, Benton, Blanchardville, Hollandale, Mineral Point, South Wayne, Woodford	Gratiot, Shullsburg, Wiota
Darmigion	Cottage Grove, Lodi, Marshall,	Granot, Shunsburg, Wiota
De Forest	Middleton, Sun Prairie, Waunakee	Madison, Poynette
De l'olest	Eagle, Hubertus, Mapleton,	Dousman, Genesee,
	Merton, Mukwonago, North Lake,	Hartland, Oconomowoc,
Delafield	North Prairie, Sullivan, Sussex	Pewaukee, Waukesha
	De Pere, Kewaunee, Luxemburg,	
	New Franken, Tisch Mills,	
Denmark	Wayside	Green Bay
	Eagle, Hartland, Johnson Creek,	,
	Mapleton, Merton, Mukwonago,	
	North Lake, North Prairie,	
	Palmyra, Pewaukee, Sullivan,	Delafield, Oconomowoc,
Dousman	Sussex, Waukesha	Genesee
	Balsam Lake, Centuria, Star	
Dresser	Prairie, Amery, Somerset	Osceola, St. Croix Falls
	Big Bend, Delafield, Dousman, East Troy, Elkhorn, Genesee, North Prairie, Sullivan, Waukesha,	
Eagle	Whitewater	Mukwonago, Palmyra
P 1 ' .	Cadott, Cornell, Elk Lake/Menard,	Bloomer, Chippewa Falls,
Eaglepoint	Long Lake, New Auburn	Jim Falls

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Big Bend, Bohners Lake,	
	Burlington, Eagle, Elkhorn,	
	Genesee, Lake Geneva, North	
	Prairie, Palmyra, Waterford, Wind	
East Troy	Lake	Mukwonago
(M)	(M)	(M)
(M)	(M)	(M)
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Camp Douglas, La Valle, Mauston,	Hillsboro, Kendall,
Elroy	New Lisbon, Wilton	Wonewac
	Arcadia, Centerville, Holmen,	
Ettrick	Melrose, Mindoro, Trempealeau	Blair, Galesville
	Augusta, Hixton, Merrillan,	
Fairchild	Northfield	Alma Center, Osseo
	Augusta, Boyd, Cadott, Chippewa	
Fall Creek	Falls, Cleghorn, Osseo	Eau Claire
	Cambria, Randolph, Beaver Dam,	
Fall River	Fox Lake, Reeseville, Waterloo	Columbus and Rio
	Albany, Beloit, Brodhead, Brooklyn,	Janesville, Evansville,
Footville	Edgerton, Milton	Orfordville
		Algoma, Brussels, Little
Forestvl	Casco, Luxemburg.	Sturgeon, Sturgeon Bay
		Cochrane, Waumandee,
Fountaincy	Arcadia, Centerville, Trempealeau	Winona, Minnesota
	Markesan, Waupun, Cambria, Fall	
	River, Brandon, Kingston, Juneau,	
Fox Lake	Burnett	Beaver Dam and Randolph

(M) Material moved to Page 76.1.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
Exchange	Balsam Lake, Centuria, Fox Creek,	Cannig Arca
	Milltown, Falun, Grantsburg, Siren,	
Frederic	Trade Lake, Webster	Cushing, Lewis, Luck
	Hortonville, Larsen, Manawa, New	
	London, Ogdensburg, Waupaca,	Poy Sippi, Readfield,
Fremont	Winneconne	Weyauwega
		Centerville, Ettrick, Holmen,
Galesville	Arcadia, Blair, Melrose, Mindoro	Trempealeau
	Big Bend, Eagle, East Troy,	
	Hartland, Mapleton, Merton,	
	Mukwonago, Muskego, North Lake,	
	Oconomowoc, Palmyra, Pewaukee,	Delafield, Dousman, North
Genesee	Sullivan, Sussex, Wind Lake	Prairie, Waukesha
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Boyd, Cornell, Holcombe, Sheldon,	
Gilman	Stanley, Thorp	Jump River
	Antigo, Pelican Lake, Rhinelander,	
Gleason	Tomahawk, Elcho	Merrill
	Hawkins, Jump River, Winter,	
Glen Flora	Kennan, Sheldon	Ladysmith
(M)	(M)	(M)
(M)	(M)	(M)
Goodman	Amberg, Laona, Pembine	
Gordon	Minong, Bames, Haywardd	Bennett, Solon Springs

(M) Material moved to Page 76.1.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
		Darlington, Shullsburg,
Gratiot	Argyle, Browntown, Woodford	South Wayne, Wiota
Green Lake	Neshkoro, Redgranite	Berlin, Princeton, Ripon
Hammond	Deer Park, Glenwood City, Hudson, New Richmond, River Falls, Roberts, Spring Valley, Spring Lake	Baldwin, Woodville
Harmony	Coleman, Crivitz, Lena, Oconto	Marinette, Peshtigo
Hawkins	Glen Flora, Jump River, Winter, Soo Lake, Ladysmith	Kennan
(M)	(M)	(M)
Hazelgreen	Belmont, Benton, Dickeyville, Platteville, Shullsburg	Cuba City
Highland	Blue River, Dodgeville, Fennimore, Lone Rock, Muscoda	Avoca, Cobb, Montfort
Hixton	Fairchild, Merrillan, Pigeon Falls, Pleasantville, Whitehall	Alma Center, Black River Falls, Northfield, Taylor
Holcombe	Ladysmith, Long Lake, Bruce, Gilman, Jim Falls, Sheldon	Cornell
Holmen	Centerville, Ettrick, Trempealeau, West Salem	Bangor, Galesville, La Crosse, Mindoro
Hurley	Mellen	Ironwood(MI)
Jim Falls	Cadott, Cornell, Bloomer, Boyd, Holcombe	Chippewa Falls, Eagle Point
Jump River	Glen Flora, Hawkins	Gilman, Sheldon
Kendall	Camp Douglas, Hillboro, Mauston, New Lisbon, Norwalk, Ontario, Tomah, Wonewoc	Elroy, Wilton

(M) Material moved to Page 76.2.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Glen Flora, Phillips, Prentice, Soo	
Kennan	Lake	Hawkins
Kingston	Cambria, FoxLake, Randolph	Markesan, Pardeeville
(M)	(M)	(M)
La Crosse /Onalaska	Bangor, Trempealeau, Mindoro	Hokah, Minnesota (Ace Telephone Association)
	Bruce, Exeland, Hawkins, Holcombe,	
Ladysmith	Sheldon, Weyerhauser, Winter	Glen Flora
(M)	(M)	(M)
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Appleton, Fremont, Hortonville, New London, Omro, Oshkosh,	
Larsen	Winneconne	Neenah, Menasha
Lena	Abrams, Gillett, Harmony, Oconto, Oconto Falls, Peshtigo, Suring	Coleman
	Cumberland, Luck, Milltown, Shell Lake, Falun, Grantsburg, Siren, Trade	Frederic
Lewis	Lake, Webster	
Lake Nebagmon	Bames, Iron River, Poplar, Bennett, Maple, Solon Springs	Superior
Little Ssturgen		Brussels, Sturgeon Bay
Luxemburg	Algoma, Brussels, Denmark, Forrestville, Kewaunee	

(M) Material moved to Page 76.2.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
(M)	(M)	(M)
Manishwtrs	Boulder Junction, Mercer, Springstead, Lac Du Flambeau, Minocqua	Presque Isle
Marinette	Crivitz, Wausaukee	Harmony, Menominee(MI), Peshtigo
Markesan	Brandon, Cambria, Fox Lake, Randolph, Waupun	Kingston
	Arena, Cross Plains, Madison, Middleton, Mount Horeb, Plain, Ridgeway, Sauk City, Spring	
Mazomanie	Green, Witwen	Black Earth
(M)	(M)	
Melrose	Cataract, Ettrick, Galesville, Mindoro	Black River Falls
Mercer	Manitowish Waterrs, Presque Isle, Lac Du Flambeau	Springstead
Merrillan	Fairchild, Hixton, Northfield	Alma Center, Black River Falls
Milton	Clinton, Edgerton, Footville, Richmond	Janesville
	Cataract, Ettrick, Fort McCoy, Galesville, LaCrosse, Melrose,	
Mindoro	Sparta, West Salem	Bangor, Holmen
Minong	Gordon, Hayward, Prentice, Springbrook, Webb Lake	Spooner
Montfort	Avoca, Belmont, Boscobel, Dodgeville, Lancaster, Mineral Point, Muscoda, Platteville	Cobb, Fennimore, Highland

(M) Material moved to Page 76.2.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Blue River, Boaz, Gays Mills,	
	Muscoda, Readstown, Sabin,	Boscobel, Steuben,
Mount Zion	Seneca, Soldiers Grove, Wauzeka	Woodman
	Burlington, Delafield, Dousman,	
	Genesee, Muskego, Palmyra,	Big Bend, Eagle, East Troy,
Mukwonago	Waterford, Wind Lake	North Prairie, Waukesha
	Boaz, Boscobel, Highland, Ithaca,	
	Lone Rock, Montfort, Mount Zion,	
Muscoda	Richland Center	Avoca, Blue River
	Berlin, Coloma, Green Lake,	
Neshkoro	Redgranite, Wild Rose	Princeton, Wautoma
Newfranken	Brussels, Casco, Denmark, De Pere	Green Bay, Luxemburg
	Bear Creek, Bonduel, Clintonville,	
	Hortonvlle, Oneida, Pulaski,	
Nichols	Shiocton	Black Creek, Seymour
	Big Bend, Delafield, Dousman,	
	Eagle, East Troy, Hartland,	
	Merton, Muskego, North Lake,	
	Oconomowoc, Palmyra, Pewaukee,	Genesee, Mukwonago,
No Prairie	Sullivan, Wind Lake	Waukesha
	Lime Ridge, Loganville, Merrimac,	
	Plain, Reedsburg, Sauk City,	
North Freedom	Wisconsin Dells, Witwen	Baraboo
		Cashton, Cataract, Ontario,
Norwalk	Tomah, Kendall	Sparta, Wilton
Oconto	Coleman, Harmony, Lena, Peshtigo	Abrams, Oconto Falls
	Cecil, Coleman, Gillett, Krakow,	
Oconto Falls	Lena, Pulaski, Suring	Brantwood, Prentice

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Evahanga	Expanded Service Area	Extended Community Calling Area
Exchange	Additional Exchanges	
Ogema	Rib Lake	Brantwood, Prentice
	Hillsboro, Kendall, La Farge, Viola,	Cashton, Cataract, Norwalk,
Ontario	Westby, Yuba	Sparta, Wilton
	Balsam Lake, Centuria, St. Croix	Dresser, Lindstrom(MN),
Osceola	Falls, Star Prairie, Amery, Somerset	Scandia(MN)
		Augusta, Fairchild,
	Cleghorn, Eleva, Fall Creek,	Northfield, Pigeon Falls,
Osseo	Whitehall	Pleasantville, Strum
	Dousman, East Troy, Elkhorn, Fort	
	Atkinson, Genesee, Jefferson,	
Palmyra	Mukwonago, North Prairie, Sullivan	Eagle, Whitewater
(M)	(M)	(M)
Pembine	Goodman	Amberg
(M)	(M)	(M)
Peshtigo	Coleman, Lena, Oconto	Harmony, Marinette
Pickett	Brandon, Rosendale	Oshkosh
	Benton, Cuba City, Hazel Green,	
Plattevl	Lancaster, Montfort, Potosi	Dickeyville, Belmont
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Iron River, Lake Nebagamon,	
Popular	Bennett, Maple, Solon Springs	Superior
	Omro, Readfield, Redgranite,	
	Waupaca, Wautoma, Wild Rose,	Fremont, Weyauwega,
Poy Sippi	Winneconne	Berlin

(M) Material moved to Page 76.2.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Lodi, Merrimac, Pardeeville,	
Poynette	Portage, Waunakee	DeForest, Madison
(M)	(M)	(M)
(M)	(M)	(M)
Presque Is	Boulder Junction, Mercer, Minocqua	Manitowich Waters
Princeton	Berlin, Redgranite, Ripon	Green Lake, Neshkoro
	Fall River, Markesan, Rio, Columbus,	Beaver Dam, Cambria and
Randolph	Waupun, Burnett, Kingston	Fox Lake
	Hortonville, Manawa, Poy Sippi,	Fremont, Larsen, New
Readfield	Weyauwega, Winneconne, Shiocton	London
	Green Lake, Neshkoro, Poy Sippi,	
Redgranite	Princeton, Wautoma, Wild Rose	Berlin
(M)	(M)	(M)
Rio	Columbus, Randolph	Cambria and Fall River
Ripon	Berlin, Omro, Princeton	Green Lake
Rosendale	Brandon, Oakfield, Pickett, Waupun	Fond du Lac
	Birchwood, Cumberland, Rice Lake,	
Sarona	Stone Lake	Shell Lake, Spooner
(M)	(M)	(M)
Seymour	Appleton, Bounduel, DePere, Little Chute, Mill Center, Oneida, Pulaski, Shiocton, Wrightstown	Black Creek, Green Bay, Nichols

(M) Material moved to Page 76.2.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
Zinemange	Cornell, Gilman, Glen Flora,	- Cuming 111 cu
Sheldon	Holcombe, Ladysmith	Jump River
Shell Lake	Cumberland, Lewis, Siren, Webster	Sarona, Spooner
	Bear Creek, Black Creek,	
	Clintonville, Mill Center, New	
	London, Nichols, Readfield,	
Shiocton	Seymour	Appleton
	Belmont, Benton, Cuba City, Hazel	
Shullsburg	Green, Wiota	Darlington, Gratiot
Solon Spg	Lake Nebagamon, Poplar, Superior	Bennett, Gordon
	Bangor, Tomah, Warrens, West	Cashton, Cataract, Norwalk,
Sparta	Salem, Mindoro	Ontario, Wilton
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Birchwood, Stone Lake, Webb Lake,	Minong, Sarona, Shell Lake,
Spooner	Webster	Springbrook
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Manitowish Waters, Lac Du	
Springsted	Flambeau	Mercer
Stanley	Augusta, Cadott, Gilman, Thorp	Boyd
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Blue River, Eastman, Gays Mills,	
	Mount Hope, Seneca, Soldiers	Boscobel, Mt. Zion,
Steuben	Grove, Wauzeka	Woodman
(M)	(M)	(M)
	Delafield, Dousman, Eagle, Genesee,	
	Hartland, Johnson Creek, Mapleton,	
	North Lake, North Prairie, Palmyra,	Fort Atkinson, Jefferson,
Sullivan	Watertown, Whitewater	Oconomowoc

(M) Material moved to Page 76.2 and 76.3.

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
Superior	Bennett, Solon Springs	Lake Nebagamon, Poplar, Duluth(MN)
(M)	(M)	(M)
Taylor	Alma Center, Independence, Northfield, Pigeon Falls, Pleasantville, Whitehall	Black River Falls, Blair, Hixton
Thorp	Augusta, Boyd, Gilman, Stanley	
Tomah	Camp Douglas, Kendall, Norwalk, Sparta, Wilton	Warrens
Trempealeu	Ettrick, Fountain City, Holmen, La Crosse	Centerville, Galesville
Turtlelake	Balsam Lake, Barron, Clear Lake, Cumberland, Fox Creek	Prairie Farm, Almena, Clayton, Amery
Twinbridge	Amberg, Lakewood, Wabeno	Crivitz, Wausaukee
W Danbury		
(M)	(M)	(M)
Warrens	Camp Douglas, Sparta	Tomah
Washburn	La Pointe	Ashland, Bayfield, Benoit
Wausaukee	Marinette	Amberg, Crivitz, Twin Bridge
Wautoma	Almond, Coloma, Hancock, Plainfield, Poy Sippi, Red Granite	Neshkoro, Wild Rose
(M)	(M)	(M)

(M) Material moved to Page 76.3.

- 3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)
 - 3.3.4 Brightspeed formerly CenturyTel (T)

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
		Wrightstown, Depere, Green
Wayside	Denmark, Kaukauna, Sherwood	Bay
		Dairyland, Danbury,
Webb Lake	Minong, Spooner	Webster
	Falun, Frederic, Grantsburg, Lewis,	Dairyland, Danbury, Siren,
Webster	Shell Lake, Spooner	Webb Lake
	Bangor, Coon Valley, Holmen,	
West Salem / Barre Mills	Sparta, Mindoro	
	Hortonville, New London,	Fremont, Poy Sippi,
Weyauwega	Ogdensburg, Readfield, Scandinavia	Manawa, Waupaca
(M)	(M)	(M)
		Arcadia, Blair,
	Hixton, Northfield, Osseo, Strum,	Independence, Pigeon Falls,
Whitehall	Taylor	Pleasantville
	Almond, Hancock, Neshkoro,	
	Plainfield, Poy Sippi, Redgranite,	
Wild rose	Waupaca	Wautoma
	Camp Douglas, Elroy, Hillsboro,	Cashton, Cataract, Norwalk,
Wilton	Tomah	Ontario, Sparta, Kendall
(M)	(M)	
	Argyle, Blanchardville, Browntown,	Darlington, Gratiot, South
Wiota	Shullsburg, Woodford	Wayne
	Cazenovia, Kendall, Lime Ridge,	
Wonewoc	Mauston, Reedsburg, Yuba	Elroy, Hillsboro, LaValle

(M) Material moved to Page 76.3.

(N)

(M)(N)

(M)(N)

SECTION 3 - SERVICE AREAS (Cont'd)

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.5 Telephone USA of Wisconsin dba CenturyLink

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
		Amery, Centuria, Fox
	Cushing, Dresser, Frederic, Luck,	Creek, Milltown, St. Croix
Balsamlake	Osceola, Turtle Lake	Falls
	Canton, Chetek, Cumberland,	Almena, Cameron, Dallas,
Barron	Ridgeland, Turtle Lake	Prairie Farm, Rice Lake
	Bruce, Exeland, Radisson, Sarona,	
	Spooner, Stone Lake,	
Birchwood	Weyerhauser	Rice Lake
	Colfax, Glenwood City, Prairie	
	Farm, Ridgeland, Spring Lake,	Knapp, Menomonie,
Boyceville	Woodville	Wheeler
Butternut	Glidden	Park Falls
	Amery, Cushing, Dresser, Frederic,	Balsam Lake, Fox Creek,
Centuria	Luck, Osceola	Milltown, St. Croix Falls
	Boyceville, Elk Lake, Menard,	Bloomer, Elk Mound,
Colfax	Wheeler	Menomonie, Sand Creek
		Seneca, Prairie du Chien,
Eastman	Gay Mills, Stueben, Woodman	Wauzeka
	Chippewa Falls, Downsville, Rock	Colfax, Eau Claire, Elk
Elk Mound	Falls	Lake, Menomonie
	Ardansaw, Downsville, Durand,	
P1 1	Ellsworth, Knapp, Menomonie,	Eau Galle, Plum City, Spring
Elmwood	Woodville	Lake, Spring Valley
Gillett	Abrams, Bonduel, Cecil, Keshena, Drakow, Lena, Oconto Falls, Pulaski	Suring
Gillett	Baldwin, Boyceville, Clear Lake,	Suring
	Deer Park, Hammond, Knapp, New	
	Richmond, Prairie Farm, Spring	
	Lake, Spring Valley, Wheeler,	
Glenwoodcy	Woodville	Glenwoodcy
,	Butternut, Mellen, Namekagon Lake,	
Glidden	Park Falls, Spider Lake, Winter	Glidden

(M) Material moved from Pages 62-67.

Issue Date: May 22, 2023

Effective Date: May 23, 2023

(N)

(M)(N)

(M)(N)

SECTION 3 - SERVICE AREAS (Cont'd)

3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)

3.3.5 Telephone USA of Wisconsin dba CenturyLink

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Cable, Gordon, Minong, Radisson,	
Hayward	Springbrook	Spider Lake, Stone Lake
	Baldwin, Downsville, Elmwood,	
	Glenwood City, Spring Lake,	
Knapp	Spring Valley, Wheeler, Woodville	Boyceville, Menomonie
	Coleman, Crivitz, Kashena, Pickerel,	
Lakewood	Twin Bridge, White Lake	Suring, Wabeno
	Amberg, Argonne, Goodman,	
Laona	Phelps, three Lakes	Crandon, Wabeno
	Arkansaw, Bay City, Ellsworth,	
Maidenrock	Hager City	Pepin, Plum City
	Ashland, Glidden, Hurley, Marengo,	
Mellen	Mason, Namekagon Lake	
Park Falls	Glidden, Phillips, Soo Lake, Winter	Butternut
	Arkansaw, Durand, Nelson, Plum	
Pepin	City	Maiden Rock
•	Bay City, Durand, Eau Galle,	Arkansaw, Elmwood,
Plum City	Ellsworth, Pepin, Spring Valley	Maiden Rock
		Eastman, McGregor, Iowa,
Praridchin	Bagley, Bloomingtoon, Mount Hope	Wauzeka
		Ellsworth, Hastings,
Prescott	Hager City	Minnesota, River Falls
	Almena, Chetek, Cumberland,	Barron, Birchwood,
Rice Lake	Sarona, Weyerhauser	Cameron, Canton
	Liberty Pole, Mount Zion,	DeSoto, Eastman, Gays
Seneca	Readstown, Soldiers Grove, Steuben	Mills
	Cable, Glidden, Namekagon Lake,	
Spiderlake	Radisson, Winter	Hayward
Springbrk	Hayward, Minong, Stone Lake	Spooner
		Balsam Lake, Centuria,
		Cushing, Dresser, Milltown,
St Croix Falls	Amery, Fox Creek, Luck, Osceola	Taylor Falls, Minnesota

(M) Material moved from Pages 68-74.

Issue Date: May 22, 2023

Effective Date: May 23, 2023

Andoni Economou COO & EVP 55 Water Street, 32nd Floor New York, NY 10041

(N)

(M)(N)

(M)(N)

SECTION 3 - SERVICE AREAS (Cont'd)

- 3.3 Local Calling Areas (continued)
 - 3.3.5 Telephone USA of Wisconsin dba CenturyLink

Exchange	Expanded Service Area Additional Exchanges	Extended Community Calling Area
	Birchwood, Radisson, Sarona,	
Stone Lake	Spooner, Springbrook	Hayward
	Cecil, Coleman, Deshena, Lena,	
Suring	Oconto Falls	Gillett, Lakewood
	Amberg, Crandon, Pickerel, Twin	
Wabeno	Bridge	Lakewood, Laona
	Bloomington, Boscobel, Fennimore,	
	Mount Hope, Mount Zion, Steuben,	
Wauzeka	Woodman	Eastman, Prairie du Chien
	Colfax, Dallas, Glenwood City,	
	Knapp, Prairie Farm, Ridgeland,	
Wheeler	Sand Creek	Boyceville, Menomonie
	Exeland, Glen Flora, Glidden,	
	Hawkins, Ladysmith, Park Falls,	
Winter	Radisson, Soo Lake, Spider Lake	

(M) Material moved from Pages 74-76.

SECTION 4 - SERVICE CHARGES AND SURCHARGES

4.1 Service Order and Change Charges

Non-recurring charges apply to processing Service Orders for new service and for changes in service.

	ATT (fSBC)	Frontier North	Frontier Comm	Brightspeed (T)
New Line Installation	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00
- Each Additional Line	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00
Move service – Different Premises	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00
- Each Additional Line	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00
Telephone Number Change	\$75.00	\$65.00	\$68.75I	\$57.44
- Each Additional Line	\$75.00	\$35.00	\$37.50	\$32.44
Rewire from One Type of Service to				
Another	\$46.65	\$65.00	\$68.75	\$57.44
- Each Additional Line	\$45.00	\$35.00	\$37.50	\$32.44
Remote Call Forwarding	\$75.00	\$75.00	\$82.36	\$57.44
- Each Additional Line	\$75.00	\$35.00	\$37.50	\$32.44
Change of Service Charge per line	\$24.75	\$24.75	\$24.75	\$24.75
Features- Add/Change /Delete per order	\$24.00	\$24.00	\$24.00	\$30.00
	·			·
Hunting Arrangement	\$75.00	\$65.00	\$68.75	\$57.44
- Each Additional Line	\$75.00	_	-	\$32.44
Voice Message Service POTS	\$75.00	\$75.00	\$75.00	\$20.00
Toll Free Set-Up Charge – each	\$25.00	\$50.00	\$25.00	\$50.00

Issue Date: June 29, 2023 Effective Date: June 30, 2023

SECTION 4 - SERVICE CHARGES AND SURCHARGES (continued)

4.2 Maintenance Visit Charges (All Areas)

Maintenance Visit Charges apply when the Company dispatches personnel to a Customer's premises to perform work necessary for installing new service, effecting changes in service or resolving troubles reported by the Customer when the trouble is found to be caused by the Customer's facilities.

Maintenance Visit Charges will be credited to the Customer's account in the event trouble is not found in the Company facilities, but the trouble is later determined to be in those facilities.

The time period for which the Maintenance Visit Charges is applied will commence when Company personnel are dispatched at the Customer premises and end when work is completed. The rates for Maintenance of Service vary by time per Customer request.

Duration of time, per technician

First 1 Hour \$250.00* #
Each Additional 1 Hour \$125.00** ##
Dispatch but No Trouble Found or No Access \$175.00

- * Rate is \$375.00 when outside of business hours in AT&T & Frontier North Areas.
- ** Rate is \$187.50 when outside of business hours in AT&T & Frontier North Areas.
- # Rate is \$375.00 when outside of business hours in all other Areas.
- ## Rate is \$187.50 when outside of business hours in all other Areas.

4.3 Restoration of Service

A restoration charge applies to the restoration of suspended service and facilities because of nonpayment of bills and is payable at the time that the restoration of the suspended service and facilities is arranged. The restoration charge does not apply when, after disconnection of service, service is later re-installed.

	AT&T	Frontier North	Frontier Comm	Brightspeed (T)
Line Restoral Charge				
-Per Account	39.00	\$50.00	\$62.50	\$57.44

Issue Date: June 29, 2023 Effective Date: June 30, 2023

SECTION 4 - SERVICE CHARGES AND SURCHARGES (continued)

4.4 Additional Service Connection Charges (All Areas)

Disconnection Order Charge: When subscriber lines and trunks are disconnected the Company incurs costs which may include other carrier related charges.

Disconnection Order Charge

Per Line or Trunk \$24.75 (I)

Issue Date: November 23, 2022 Effective Date: December 23, 2022

SECTION 5 – NETWORK SERVICES DESCRIPTIONS

5.1 General

5.1.1 Services Offered

The following Network Services are available to business Customers:

Standard Business Line Service
PBX Trunk Service
Direct Inward Dial (DID) Service
Optional Calling Features
Listing Services (including Non Published and Non Listed Services)
Directory Assistance
Miscellaneous Services (including Vanity Numbers and Number Portability)

5.1.2 Application of Rates and Charges

All services offered in this product guide are subject to service order and change charges where the Customer requests new services or changes in existing services, as well as indicated Non-Recurring and Monthly Recurring Charges. Charges for local calling services may be assessed on a measured rate basis and are additional to monthly recurring charges shown for Business lines, PBX Trunks, DID Trunks and Digital/DS1 service.

5.1 General (Continued)

5.1.3 Emergency Telephone Service Responsibilities

Company is obligated to supply the E-911 service provider in the Company's service area (the E-911 service provider) with information necessary to update the E-911 database at the time Company submits customer orders to the local exchange company whose service is being resold pursuant to these product guides.

At the time Company provides basic local service to a customer by means of its own cable pair, or over any other exclusively owned facility, Company will be obligated to make the necessary equipment or facility additions in the 911 service provider's equipment in order to properly update the database for 911.

Company will be obligated to provide facilities to route calls from the end users to the proper PSAP. Company recognizes the authority of the E-911 customer to establish service specifications and grant final approval or denial of service configurations offered by Company.

Company will collect 911 surcharges and remit all surcharge revenue to the appropriate governmental entity pursuant to RSMo 190.310.

5.2 Call Timing for Usage Sensitive Services

Where charges for a service are specified based on the duration of use, such as the duration of a telephone call, the following rules apply:

- 5.2.1 Calls are measured in durational increments identified for each service. All calls, which are fractions of a measurement increment, are rounded-up to the next whole unit. A unit is equivalent to a minute.
- 5.2.2 Timing on completed calls begins when the call is answered by the called party. Answering is determined by hardware answer supervision in all cases where this signaling is provided by the terminating local carrier and any intermediate carrier(s).
- 5.2.3 Timing terminates on all calls when the calling party hangs up or the Company's network receives an off-hook signal from the terminating carrier.
- 5.2.4 Calls originating in one time period and terminating in another will be billed in proportion to the rates in effect during different segments of the call.
- 5.2.5 All times refer to local time.

5.3 Distance Calculations

Where charges for a service are specified based upon distance, the following rules apply:

- 5.3.1 Distance between two points is measured as airline distance between the rate centers of the originating and terminating telephone lines. The rate center is a set of geographic coordinates, as referenced in Local Exchange Routing Guide issued by Bellcore, associated with each NPA-NXX combination (where NPA is the area code and NXX is the first three digits of a seven-digit telephone number). Where there is not telephone number associated with an access line on the Company's network (such as a dedicated 800 or WATS access line), the Company will apply the rate center of the Customer's main billing telephone number.
- 5.3.2 The airline distance between any two rate centers is determined as follows:
 - Step 1: Obtain the "V" (vertical) and "H" (horizontal) coordinates for each Rate Center from the above-referenced Bellcore document.
 - Step 2: Computer the difference between he "V" coordinate of the two rate centers, and the difference between the two "H" coordinates.
 - Step 3: Square each difference obtained in step (b) above.
 - Step 4: Add the square of the "V" difference and the square of the "H" difference obtained in step C) above.
 - Step 5: Divide the sum of the squares by 10. Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained.
 - Step 6: Obtain the square root of the whole number result obtained above. Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the airline mileage.
- 5.3.3 The formula for distance calculations is:

Squareroot of:

$$\frac{(V_1 - V_2)^2 + (H_1 - H_2)^2}{2}$$

- 5.4 Rate Periods for Time of Day Sensitive Services
 - 5.4.1 For time of day, usage sensitive services, the following rate periods apply unless otherwise specified in this product guide.

8:00 AM TO 5:00 PM*	MON	TUES DAYTIN	WED ME RATE	THUR PERIOD	FRI	SAT	SUN
5:00 PM TO 11:00 PM*		EVENIN	NG RATE	PERIOD			EVE
11:00 PM TO 8:00 AM*		N	IGHT/WE	EKEND RA	TE PERIO	D	

^{*}Up to but not including.

- 5.4.2 Calls are billed based on the rate in effect for the actual time period(s) during which the call occurs. Calls that cross rate period boundaries are billed the rates in effect in that boundary for each portion of the call, based on the time of day at the Customer location.
- 5.4.3 For services subject to holiday discounts, the following are Company recognized national holidays, determined at the location of the calling station. The evening rate is used on national holidays, unless a lower rate normally would apply.

New Year's Day January 1

Memorial Day As Federally Observed

Independence Day July 4

Thanksgiving Day As Federally Observed

Christmas Day December 25

5.5 Standard Business Line

The Standard Business Line provides a Customer with a single, analog, voice-grade telephonic communications channel, which can be used to place or receive one call at a time. Standard Business Lines are provided for the connection of Customer-provided wiring and single station sets or facsimile machines. An optional per line Hunting feature is available for multi-line Customers which routes a call to an idle station line in a prearranged group when the called station line is busy.

5.6 PBX Trunk Service

Basic PBX Trunk Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic communications channel, which can be used to place or receive one call at a time. Basic Trunks are provided for connection of Customer-provided private branch exchanges (PBX) to the public switched telecommunications network. Each Basic PBX Trunk is provided with touch-tone signaling and may be configured into a hunt group at no additional charge with other Company-provided Basic PBX Trunks. The signal is an analog signal at the DS0 level.

5.7 Direct Inward Dialing (DID) Service

Direct Inward Dialing ("DID") permits calls incoming to a PBX system or other Customer Premises Equipment to be routed to a specific station without the assistance of an attendant. DID calls are routed directly to the station associated with the called number. DID service as offered by the Company provides the necessary trunks, telephone numbers, and outpulsing of digits to enables DID service at a Customer's location. DID service requires special PBX software and hardware not provided by the Company. Such hardware and software is the responsibility of the Customer.

(C)

SECTION 5 – NETWORK SERVICES DESCRIPTIONS (continued)

5.8 Optional Calling Features

The features listed in Section 5.11.1 are offered by the Company to Business Customers. Refer to Price Lists in Section 6 of this product guide for specific features offered with each type of local exchange service.

5.8.1 Features Descriptions

(A) Call Forwarding: Provides end-user control for call forwarding capabilities via dial-accessed voice prompt menus. Customers may forward calls to a primary local or long distance. The end-user may specify a secondary location for routing of go unanswered at the forward-to location or reach a busy signal. This secondary location may be another telephone number, pager or voice messaging service

It is the responsibility of the Customer to subscribe to the telephone number, pager or voice messaging service used as the secondary location.

- (B) Call Forwarding Variable: Permits the end-user to automatically forward (transfer) all incoming calls to another telephone number, and to restore it to normal operation at their discretion. The end-user must dial an activation code from his/her exchange line along with the forward-to number in order to turn the feature on. A separate code is dialed by the end-user to deactivate the feature.
- (C) Call Forwarding Variable, Remote Access: Permits the end-user to automatically forward (transfer) all incoming calls to another telephone number, and to restore it to normal operation at their discretion. The end-user must dial an activation code along with the forward-to number in order to turn the feature on. A separate code is dialed by the end-user to deactivate the feature. Feature activation may be performed from the end-user's exchange line or remotely from some other line. Remote access requires the end-user to (1) dial a special access number 2) enter their seven-digit telephone number and 3) enter a personal identification number prior to forwarding their calls.

- 5.8 Optional Calling Features, (continued)
 - 5.8.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued)
 - (D) Call Forwarding-Don't Answer: Permits the forwarding of incoming calls when the end-user's line remains unanswered after a pre-designated ringing interval. The ringing interval before forwarding and the forward-to number are fixed by the service order.
 - (E) Call Forwarding-Busy Line: Permits the forwarding of incoming calls when the end-user's line is busy. The forwarded number is fixed by the end-user service order
 - (F) Call Forwarding-Busy Line/Don't Answer: Permits the forwarding of incoming calls when the end-user's line is busy. The forwarded number is fixed by the end-user service order. Permits the forwarding of incoming calls when the end-user's line remains unanswered after a pre-designated ringing interval. The ringing interval before forwarding and the forward-to number are fixed by the service order.
 - (G) Call Waiting Basic: Call Waiting provides a tone signal to indicate to a Customer already engaged in a telephone call that a second caller is attempting to dial in. It permits the Customer to place the first call on hold, answer the second call and then alternate between both callers. Cancel Call Waiting is provided with the feature and allows a Call Waiting end-user to disable the Call Waiting feature for the duration of a single outgoing telephone call. Cancel Call Waiting is activate by dialing a special code prior to placing a call, and is automatically deactivated when the Customer disconnects from the call.
 - (H) Caller ID Number: Permits the end-user to view a Directory Number of the calling party on incoming telephone calls. Information is displayed on a specialized CPE not provided by the Company. The feature also provides the date and time of each incoming call. It is the responsibility of the Customer to provide the necessary CPE.

- 5.8 Optional Calling Features, (continued)
 - 5.8.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued)
 - (I) Caller ID Name & Number: Permits the end-user to view a Calling Party Directory Name and/or Number (CPN) on incoming telephone calls. Information is displayed on a specialized CPE not provided by the Company. The feature also provides the date and time of each incoming call. It is the responsibility of the Customer to provide the necessary CPE.

Per line blocking for the blocking of CPN will be available upon request, at no charge. The CPN will not be transmitted from a line equipped with this capability. Per line blocking is operational on a continuous basis but can be deactivated by the customer by dialing an access code immediately prior to placing a call.

Line blocking customers can unblock their CPN information on a per call basis, at no charge, by dialing an access code {#82 on their TouchTone pad or 1182 from a rotary phone) immediately prior to placing a call.

A customer may prevent the delivery of the calling name and or number to the called party by dialing an access code (#67 on their Touch Tone pad or 1167 from a rotary phone) immediately prior to placing a call. The access code will activate per call blocking, which is available at no charge. If the calling party activates blocking, the CPN will not be transmitted across the line to the called party. Instead, Calling Line Identification customers will receive an anonymous indicator. This anonymous indicator notifies the called Caller ID customer that the calling party has elected to block the delivery of their name and telephone number. If the called Caller ID customer also subscribes to Anonymous Call Rejection, the calling party will be routed to a telephone company recording advising the caller that the called party will not accept calls whose CPN has been blocked.

Telephone CPN information transmitted via Caller ID is intended solely for the use of the Caller ID subscriber. CPN will not be displayed if the called party is off-hook or if the called party answers during the first ring interval. CPN will be displayed for calls made from another central office only if it is linked by appropriate facilities. Caller ID is not available on operator handled calls.

- 5.8 Optional Calling Features, (continued)
 - 5.8.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued)
 - (J) Anonymous Call Rejection: Permits the end-user to automatically reject incoming calls when the call originates from a telephone number which has blocked delivery of its calling number (see Calling Number Delivery Blocking). When active, calls from private numbers will be routed to a special announcement then terminated. The feature may be turned on or off by the end-user by dialing the appropriate feature control code.
 - (K) Call Block: Allows the end-user to automatically block incoming calls from up to six end-user pre-selected telephone numbers programmed into the feature's screening list. Callers whose numbers have been blocked will hear a recorded message stating that their call has been blocked. The end-user controls when the feature is active, and can add or remove calling numbers from the feature's screening list.
 - (L) Call Return: Allows the Customer to return a call to the last incoming call whether answered or not. Upon activation, it will redial the number automatically and continue to check the number every 45 seconds for up to 30 minutes if the number is busy. The Customer is alerted with a distinctive ringing pattern when the busy number is free. When the Customer answers the ring, the call is then completed.
 - (M) Call Tracing: Allows the tracing of nuisance calls to a specified telephone number suspected of originating from a given local office. The tracing is activated upon entering the specified dial code. The originating telephone number, outgoing trunk number or terminating number, and the time and date are generated for every call to the specified telephone number can then be identified.
 - (N) Repeat Dialing: Permits the end-user to have calls automatically redialed when the first attempt reaches a busy number. The line is checked every 45 seconds for up to 30 minutes and alerts the Customer with a distinctive ringing pattern when the busy number and the Customer's line are free. The Customer can continue to make and receive calls while the feature is activated. The following types of calls cannot be reached using Repeat Dialing:

Calls to 800/900 Service numbers
Calls preceded by an interexchange carrier access code
International Direct Distance Dialed calls
Calls to Directory Assistance
Calls to 911

- 5.8 Optional Calling Features, (continued)
 - 5.8.1 Feature Descriptions, (continued)
 - (O) Speed Calling: Permits the Customer to place calls to other telephone numbers by dialing a one or two digit code rather than the complete telephone number. The feature is available as either an eight (8) code list or a thirty (30) code list. Code lists may include local and/or toll telephone numbers. The Customer has the ability to add or remove telephone numbers and codes to/from the speed calling list without assistance from the Company.
 - (P) Three Way Calling: Permits the end-user to add a third party to an established connection. When the third party answers, a two-way conversation can be held before adding the original party for a three-way conference. The end-user initiating the conference controls the call and may disconnect the third party to reestablish the original connection or establish a connection to a different third party. The feature may be used on both outgoing and incoming calls.
 - (Q) Call Trace allows the customer to dial a code (*57) to automatically request that the following information be recorded:
 - -The originating telephone number
 - -The date and time of the call
 - -The date and time call trace was activated

When Call Trace successfully identifies a calling number, a recording instructs the customer to call a toll free number, which will activate a Voice Response script and assist the customer in establishing an open file. Should the customer decide to prosecute the call originating party, the customer should contact the Company for further instructions. Activation of Call Trace never authorizes Company to provide the called party with the name or telephone number of the calling party. In the event that Call Trace is not available or is unable to resolve the case, it may be necessary to place a manual trap on the customer's telephone line.

5.9 Listing Services

For each Customer of Company-provided Exchange Service(s), the Company shall arrange for the listing of the Customer's main billing telephone number in the directory(ies) published by the dominant Local Exchange Carrier in the area at no additional charge. At a Customer's option, the Company will arrange for additional listings for an additional charge.

5.9.1 Non-Published Service

This optional service provides for suppression of printed and recorded directory listings. A Customer's name and number do not appear in printed directories or Directory Assistance Bureau records.

5.9.2 Non-Listed Service

This optional service provides for suppression of printed directory listings only. Parties may still obtain the Customer's number by calling the Directory Assistance Bureau.

5.10 Directory Assistance

Provides for identification of telephone directory numbers via an operator or automated platform. Customers are provided with a maximum of 2 listings per each call to Directory Assistance.

5.11 Miscellaneous Services

5.11.1 Presubscription Services

This service provides for the Presubscription of local exchange lines provided by the Company to the intraLATA and interLATA long distance carrier(s) selected by the Customer.

5.11.2 Pay Per Call Blocking/Unblocking

This service provides the option of blocking, or subsequent unblocking, all 900 and 976 calls on a per line basis. The Company will provide for per-line blocking where the Company's switching facilities permit. There is no charge for this service.

5.11.3 Call Intercept Recording for Customer's Number Change

At the customer's request the Company will, for 30 days, provide the customer with an intercept recording referring callers to another number. This service is available to customers at no charge for the first 30 days. Customers will incur a \$5.00 per month charge after the initial 30 days.

SECTION 6 - LOCAL SERVICES PRICE LIST

6.1 General

Services provided in this product guide section are available on a Resale Service basis. Local Resale Services are provided through the use of resold switching and transport facilities obtained from the underlying carrier. The Company will concur in the terms, conditions, and descriptions of the underlying carrier.

The rates, terms and conditions set forth in the section are applicable where the Company provides specified local exchange services to Customers through resale of local exchange services.

All rates set forth in this Section are subject to change and may be changed by the Company pursuant to notice requirements.

6.2 Standard Business Local Exchange Service

Standard Business Local Exchange Service provides the Customer with a single, analog, voice-grade telephonic communications channel, which can be used to place or receive one call at a time. Standard Business Local Exchange Service lines are provided for the connection of Customer-provided wiring, telephones, facsimile machines or other station equipment. An optional per line Hunting feature is available for multi-line Customers which routes a call to the next idle line in a prearranged group when the called line is busy.

Local exchange service lines and trunks are provided on a single party (individual) basis only. No multi-party lines are provided.

Recurring charges for Standard Business Local Exchange Service are billed monthly in advance. Usage charges, if applicable are billed in arrears. Usage charges may apply for calls placed from the Customer's line. No usage charges will apply to calls received by the Customer. Non-recurring charges for installation or rearrangement of service are billed on the next month's bill immediately following work performed by the Company.

6.2 Standard Business Local Exchange Service (Continued)

6.2.1 Monthly Recurring Charges - AT&T Areas

The following charges apply to Standard Business Local Exchange Service lines and consist of a Network Access Line, Local Messages or Local Message Packages and Extended Community Calling (ECC) Local Messages. All Business services are measured. Rates and charges include Touchtone Service for each line and are provided on a month-to-month basis. Term discounts are also available

		RATE GROUPS	
INDIVIDUAL LINE	Rate Group 1,2,3	Rate Group 4,5	Rate Group 6
Business Message			
Rate (No Allowance)	\$1878.751		
Business Message			
Rate w/Allowance	\$2179.43 ^{1, 2} (I)		
Business Message			
Rate (No Allowance)			
Optional EAS Tier 1 ³		\$1940.00 ⁴	
Business Message			
Rate (No Allowance)			
Optional EAS Tier 2 ³			\$1946.255
Business Message			
Rate (w/Allowance)			
Optional EAS Tier 1 ³		\$2240.68 ^{2,4} (I)	
Business Message			
Rate (w/Allowance)			
Optional EAS Tier 2 ³			\$2246.93 ^{2,5} (I)

 $^{^{1}}$ Discounts of 19%, 24% and 28% apply for 12, 24 and 36 month term commitments respectively.

Local Calls

	ALLOWANCE	
Zero Business Local Message Package (No Allowance)	0	\$3.32 per untimed message. (I)
75 Business Local Message Package (With Allowance)	75	\$3.32 per additional untimed message (I)
Business Extended Community Calling Local Message		
Rates		\$1.12 per minute or fraction thereof (I)

Issue Date: May 3, 2024 Effective Date: June 1, 2024

² Includes 75 Business Local Message Package \$300.68 (I)

³ Grandfathered to existing customers at their existing locations

⁴ Includes optional Tier 1 EAS \$61.25

⁵ Includes optional Tier 2 EAS \$67.50

- 6.2 Standard Business Local Exchange Service (Continued)
 - 6.2.2 Monthly Recurring Charges Frontier North

Local Exchange Access Line Service consists of Basic Exchange Service, Extended Area Service and Extended Community Calling (ECC) if applicable. Basic Exchange Service, Extended Area Service, and Extended Community Calling (ECC) for each exchange, presently in service, is listed in 3.3.2. of this Product Guide.

Rate Groups	INDIVIDUAL LINE	Monthly Rate
1,2,3	^{1,2} Business Message Rate	\$54.38 (I)

¹Local message unit at \$.06 per originating completed call within the serving exchange and \$.12 per originating completed call to other exchanges within the Extended Area Service Area applies.

²Rates for Extended Community Calling (ECC) Messages consist of a charge per minute. The per minute charge applies for each minute or any fractional minute of call duration. The ECC per minute rate is \$0.04.

Time of Day discounts do not apply

Issue Date: March 23, 2024 Effective Date: April 23, 2024

6.2 Standard Business Local Exchange Service (Continued)

6.2.3 Monthly Recurring Charges – Frontier Communications

Rate		Monthly
Group	Bus Individual Flat Rate (includes Touch-Tone)	Rate*
1	¹ Frontier Communications of St. Croix	\$43.73 I
2	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$48.48 I
3	² Frontier Communications of Viroqua	\$47.85 I
4	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$49.10 I
5	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$51.60 I
6	² Frontier Communications of Mondovi	\$51.60 I
7	² Frontier Communications of Wisconsin	\$51.60 I
8	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$52.85 I
9	² Citizens Communications of Illinois (Fairplay, WI)	\$48.13 I

Rate		Monthly
Group	Key Line Flat Rate (includes Touch-Tone)	Rate*
1	¹ Frontier Communications of St. Croix	\$36.60 I
2	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$42.23 I
3	² Frontier Communications of Viroqua	\$40.35 I
4	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$42.85 I
5	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$49.10 I
6	² Frontier Communications of Mondovi	\$51.60 I
7	² Frontier Communications of Wisconsin	\$41.60 I
8	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$44.10 I
9	² Citizens Communications of Illinois (Fairplay, WI)	\$40.63

^{*}Rates for Extended Community Calling (ECC) consist of a charge per minute. The per minute charge applies for each minute or any fractional minute of call duration. The ECC per minute rate is the following: Basic Exchange Service, Extended Area Service, and Extended Community Calling (ECC) for each exchange, presently in service, is listed in 3.3.3 of this Product Guide.

	Per Minute R rate
¹ Frontier Communications of St. Croix	\$0.0625
² All Other Companies	\$0.0750

Time of Day discounts do not apply

Issue Date: March 23, 2024 Effective Date: April 23, 2024

6.2 Standard Business Local Exchange Service (Cont'd) Brightspeed f CenturyTel (T)

Rate		Monthly
Group	Bus Individual Flat Rate	Rate*
1	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest WI	\$58.75
2	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest WI	\$58.75
3	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest WI	\$58.75
4	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest WI	\$58.75
5	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest WI	\$58.75
6	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest WI	\$58.75
7	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest WI	\$58.75
8	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest WI	\$58.75
9	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest WI	\$58.75
10	Brightspeed of North Central Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Midwest -Kendall	\$58.75
11	Brightspeed of Central Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Wisconsin	\$58.75
12	Brightspeed of Southern Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Southern Wisconsin	\$58.75
13	Brightspeed of Northeastern Wisconsin CenturyTel of Forestville	\$61.25
14	Brightspeed of Northeastern Wisconsin CenturyTel of Forestville	\$61.25
15	Brightspeed of East Central Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Larsen-Readfield	\$61.25
16	Brightspeed of Northwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin	\$61.25
17	Brightspeed of Northwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin	\$61.25
18	Brightspeed of Central Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Wisconsin	\$61.25
19	Brightspeed of Eastern Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Fairwater-Brandon-Alto	\$61.25
20	Brightspeed of Northwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin	\$61.25
21	Brightspeed of Northwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin	\$61.25
22	Brightspeed of Northwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin	\$61.25
24	Brightspeed of Northwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin	\$61.25
25	Brightspeed of Northwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin	\$61.25
26	Brightspeed of Northwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin	\$61.25
27	Brightspeed of Northwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Northwest Wisconsin	\$61.25
28	Brightspeed od East Central Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Larsen-Readfield	\$61.25
29	Brightspeed of Midwest Wisconsin fCenturyTel of Monroe County	\$58.75

(I)

Issue Date: August 23, 2024 Effective Date: September 23, 2024

6.2 Standard Business Local Exchange Service (Continued)

6.2.4 Monthly Recurring Charges/Per Message Rates - Brightspeed fCenturyTel (T)

Rate		Monthly
Group	Business Individual Message Rate	Rate*
18	Brightspeed of Central Wisconsin (T)	\$53.75
23	Telephone USA of Wisconsin	\$55.00

Rate		
Group	Business Per Message Rates	Per Message
18	Brightspeed of Central Wisconsin (T)	
	Home Exchange	\$0.00
	Extended Community Calling	\$0.00
	EAS Exchanges	\$0.0875

Rate		
Group	Business Per Message Rates	Per Message
23	Telephone USA of Wisconsin	
	Home Exchange	\$0.0750
	Extended Community Calling	\$0.00
	EAS Exchanges	\$0.1500

Rate	Business Message Rate with	Monthly
Group	Optional Metro Service	Rate*
3	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin (T)	\$61.25
6	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin (T)	\$61.25

^{*}Message Rate with Optional Metro Service includes 75 Message Units/Line per month

	Business Message Rate with Optional Metro	
Rate	Service (Additional Message Rate Calls over 75	
Group	Msg Allowance)	Per Message
3	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin (T)	\$0.00
6	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin (T)	\$0.00

Issue Date: June 29. 2023 Effective Date: June 30, 2023

(I)

(I)

SECTION 6 – LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES PRICE LIST (continued)

- 6.2 Standard Business Local Exchange Service (Continued)
 - 6.2.4 Monthly Recurring Charges Brightspeed fCenturyTel (Cont'd) (T)

Rate		Monthly
Group	Bus Flat Rate with Measured Rate EAS	Rate*
1	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin	\$61.25
2	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin	\$61.25
3	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin	\$61.25
4	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin	\$61.25
5	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin	\$61.25
6	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin	\$61.25
7	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin	\$61.25
8	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin	\$61.25
19	Brightspeed of Eastern Wisconsin	\$58.75

Rate		
Group	Measured Rate EAS Usage Rates	Per Minute
1 - 8	Brightspeed of Western Wisconsin	\$0.00
19	Brightspeed of Eastern Wisconsin	\$0.00
11	LaCrosse/Onalaska to Hokah, Minnesota	\$0.00

Issue Date: August 23, 2024 Effective Date: September 23, 2024

6.3 PBX Trunk Service

PBX Trunk service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic communications channel which can be used to place one call at a time. Trunks are provided for connection of Customer-provided private branch exchanges (PBX) or other station equipment to the public switched telecommunications network. PBX Trunks are available to Business Customers as Inward, Outward or Two-Way combination trunks where services and facilities permit. Each PBX Trunk is provided with Touchtone signaling at no additional charge.

Usage charges, where applicable, are the same as those specified for Individual Lines in Section 6.2. PBX Trunks may also be equipped with Direct Inward Dialing (DID) capability and DID number blocks for additional charges (see Section 6.4).

6.3.1 Monthly Recurring Charges - AT&T Areas

	RATE GROUPS		
INDIVIDUAL LINE	Rate Group	Rate Group 4,5	Rate Group 6
	1,2,3		_
Business Message Rate Trunk			
(No Allowance)	\$1878.75		
Business Message Rate Trunk			
w/Allowance	\$2179.43 ¹ (I)		
Business Message Rate Trunk			
(No Allowance) Optional EAS Tier 1 ²		\$1940.00 ³	
Business Message Rate Trunk			
(No Allowance) Optional EAS Tier 2 ²			\$1946.25 ⁴
Business Message Rate Trunk			
(w/Allowance) Optional EAS Tier 1 ²		\$2240.68 ^{1,3} (I)	
Business Message Rate Trunk			
(w/Allowance) Optional EAS Tier 2 ²			\$2246.93 ⁴ (I)

¹ Includes 75 Business Local Message Package \$300.68 (I)

Local Calls

	ALLOWANCE	
Zero Business Local Message Package (No		
Allowance)	0	\$3.32 per untimed msg. (I)
75 Business Local Message Package (With		\$3.32 per additional untimed
Allowance)	75	Message (I)
Business Extended Community Calling Local		
Message Rates		\$1.12 per minute or fraction thereof (I)

Issue Date: May 3, 2024 Effective Date: June 1, 2024

² Grandfathered to existing customers at their existing locations

³ Includes optional Tier 1 EAS \$61.25

⁴ Includes optional Tier 2 EAS \$67.50

6.3 PBX Trunk Service (cont'd)

6.3.2 Monthly Recurring Charges – Frontier North

INDIVIDUAL LINE	Rate Group 1,2,3
^{1,2} Business 2- Way Message Rate Trunk	\$44.38

¹Local message unit at \$.06 per originating completed call within the serving exchange and \$.12 per originating completed call to other exchanges within the Extended Area Service Area applies.

²Rates for Extended Community Calling (ECC) Messages consist of a charge per minute. The per minute charge applies for each minute or any fractional minute of call duration. The ECC per minute rate is \$0.04.

Time of Day discounts do not apply

6.3.3 Monthly Recurring Charges – Frontier Communications

Rate		Monthly
Group	PBX TRUNK FLAT RATE (includes Touch-Tone)	Rate*
1	¹ Frontier Communications of St. Croix	\$36.60 (I)
2	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$45.44
3	² Frontier Communications of Viroqua	\$40.35 (I)
4	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$46.06
5	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$47.50
7	² Frontier Communications of Wisconsin	\$44.73 (I)
8	² Rhinelander Telephone, LLC	\$68.56
9	² Citizens Communications of Illinois (Fairplay, WI)	\$51.25

Rates for Extended Community Calling (ECC) consist of a charge per minute. The per minute charge applies for each minute or any fractional minute of call duration. The ECC per minute rate is the following: See Section 3.3.3

	Per Minute R rate
¹ Frontier Communications of St. Croix	\$0.0750
² All Other Companies	\$0.0625

Time of Day discounts do not apply

Issue Date: March 23, 2024 Effective Date: April 23, 2024

(I)

|(I)|

SECTION 6 – LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES PRICE LIST (continued)

6.3 PBX Trunk Service (cont'd)

6.3.4 Monthly Recurring Charges – Brightspeed fCenturyTel (T)

Rate Group 2 \$65.00 Rate Group 3 \$65.00 Rate Group 4 \$65.00 Rate Group 5 \$65.00 Rate Group 6 \$65.00 Rate Group 7 \$65.00 Rate Group 8 \$65.00 Rate Group 9 \$65.00 Rate Group 10 \$65.00 Rate Group 11 \$65.00 Rate Group 12 \$65.00 Rate Group 13 \$65.00 Rate Group 14 \$65.00 Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	RATE GROUPS	PBX TRUNK – Flat Rate
Rate Group 3 \$65.00 Rate Group 4 \$65.00 Rate Group 5 \$65.00 Rate Group 6 \$65.00 Rate Group 7 \$65.00 Rate Group 8 \$65.00 Rate Group 9 \$65.00 Rate Group 10 \$65.00 Rate Group 11 \$65.00 Rate Group 12 \$65.00 Rate Group 13 \$65.00 Rate Group 14 \$65.00 Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 1	\$65.00
Rate Group 4 \$65.00 Rate Group 5 \$65.00 Rate Group 6 \$65.00 Rate Group 7 \$65.00 Rate Group 8 \$65.00 Rate Group 9 \$65.00 Rate Group 10 \$65.00 Rate Group 11 \$65.00 Rate Group 12 \$65.00 Rate Group 13 \$65.00 Rate Group 14 \$65.00 Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 2	\$65.00
Rate Group 5 Rate Group 6 Rate Group 7 Rate Group 8 Rate Group 9 Rate Group 10 Rate Group 11 Rate Group 12 Rate Group 13 Rate Group 14 Rate Group 15 Rate Group 15 Rate Group 16 Rate Group 17 Rate Group 18 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 16 Rate Group 17 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 20 Rate Group 20 Rate Group 21 Rate Group 24 Rate Group 25 Rate Group 26 Rate Group 27 Rate Group 27 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 29 Rate Group 30 Rate Gr	Rate Group 3	\$65.00
Rate Group 6 Rate Group 7 Rate Group 8 Rate Group 9 Rate Group 9 Rate Group 10 Rate Group 11 Rate Group 12 Rate Group 13 Rate Group 14 Rate Group 15 Rate Group 16 Rate Group 17 Rate Group 17 Rate Group 18 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 20 Rate Group 21 Rate Group 21 Rate Group 21 Rate Group 22 Rate Group 24 Rate Group 25 Rate Group 26 Rate Group 27 Rate Group 27 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 29 Rate Group 20 Rate Group 20 Rate Group 20 Rate Gr	Rate Group 4	\$65.00
Rate Group 7 Rate Group 8 Rate Group 9 Rate Group 10 Rate Group 11 Rate Group 12 Rate Group 13 Rate Group 14 Rate Group 15 Rate Group 16 Rate Group 17 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 20 Rate Group 21 Rate Group 24 Rate Group 25 Rate Group 26 Rate Group 27 Rate Group 28 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00 \$65.00	Rate Group 5	\$65.00
Rate Group 8 Rate Group 9 Rate Group 10 Rate Group 11 Rate Group 12 Rate Group 13 Rate Group 14 Rate Group 15 Rate Group 16 Rate Group 17 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 20 Rate Group 21 Rate Group 21 Rate Group 24 Rate Group 25 Rate Group 26 Rate Group 27 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 28 Rate Group 29 Rate Group 28	Rate Group 6	\$65.00
Rate Group 9 \$65.00 Rate Group 10 \$65.00 Rate Group 11 \$65.00 Rate Group 12 \$65.00 Rate Group 13 \$65.00 Rate Group 14 \$65.00 Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 7	\$65.00
Rate Group 10 \$65.00 Rate Group 11 \$65.00 Rate Group 12 \$65.00 Rate Group 13 \$65.00 Rate Group 14 \$65.00 Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 8	\$65.00
Rate Group 11 \$65.00 Rate Group 12 \$65.00 Rate Group 13 \$65.00 Rate Group 14 \$65.00 Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 9	\$65.00
Rate Group 12 \$65.00 Rate Group 13 \$65.00 Rate Group 14 \$65.00 Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 10	\$65.00
Rate Group 13 \$65.00 Rate Group 14 \$65.00 Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 11	\$65.00
Rate Group 14 \$65.00 Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 12	\$65.00
Rate Group 15 \$65.00 Rate Group 16 \$65.00 Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 13	\$65.00
Rate Group 16 Rate Group 17 Rate Group 19 Rate Group 20 Rate Group 21 Rate Group 22 Rate Group 22 Rate Group 24 Rate Group 25 Rate Group 26 Rate Group 27 Rate Group 28 \$65.00 Rate Group 28	Rate Group 14	\$65.00
Rate Group 17 \$65.00 Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 15	\$65.00
Rate Group 19 \$65.00 Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 16	\$65.00
Rate Group 20 \$65.00 Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 17	\$65.00
Rate Group 21 \$65.00 Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 19	\$65.00
Rate Group 22 \$65.00 Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 20	\$65.00
Rate Group 24 \$65.00 Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 21	\$65.00
Rate Group 25 \$65.00 Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 22	\$65.00
Rate Group 26 \$65.00 Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 24	\$65.00
Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 25	\$65.00
Rate Group 27 \$65.00 Rate Group 28 \$65.00	Rate Group 26	\$65.00
Rate Group 28 \$65.00		\$65.00
1	Rate Group 28	
	Rate Group 29	\$65.00

Issue Date: August 23, 2024 Effective Date: September 23, 2024

- 6.3 PBX Trunk Service (cont'd)
 - 6.3.4 Monthly Recurring Charges (cont'd)- Brightspeed fCenturyTel (T)

RATE GROUPS	PBX TRUNK – Message Rate
Rate Group 18	\$53.75

Issue Date: June 29. 2023 Effective Date: June 30, 2023

6.4 Direct Inward Dialing (DID) Service

Direct Inward Dialing ("DID") permits calls incoming to a PBX system or other Customer Premises Equipment to be routed to a specific station without the assistance of an attendant. DID calls are routed directly to the station associated with the called number. DID service as offered by the Company provides the necessary trunks, telephone numbers, and out-pulsing of digits to enable DID service at a Customer's location. DID service requires special PBX software and hardware not provided by the Company. Such hardware and software is the responsibility of the Customer.

The following charges apply to Customers subscribing to DID service provided by the Company. These charges are in addition to recurring and non-recurring charges for PBX Trunks as shown in Section 6.3 of this product guide.

6.4.1 AT&T Areas

	Installation	Monthly
	<u>Charge</u>	Recurring
Establish Trunk Group and Provide		
20 DID Numbers	\$277.25	\$1695.00 ¹ (I)
Each Additional 20 DID Numbers	\$27.00	\$232.00 (I)
DID Trunk (No Allowance)		
Terminations:		
Inward Only, Per Trunk	277.25	\$3997.50 ¹ (I)
Combination Trunk with Call Transfer, Per Trunk	\$175.00	\$4775.00 ¹ (I)

4.2 Frontier North Area

	Installation	Monthly
	<u>Charge</u>	Recurring
Establish Trunk Group and Provide		
Each group of 20 DID Numbers	-	\$8.00
Each group of 100 DID Numbers	-	\$22.50
Trunk Termination		
Initial Trunk Termination	\$500.00	\$28.50
Each Additional Trunk Termination	\$60.00	\$28.50
DIOD Trunk	\$100.00	\$28.50

¹Port rate only, PBX Trunk cost and Usage/EAS is additional as noted on Page 100. Minimum purchase of one (1) Number block required.

Issue Date: January 23, 2024 Effective Date: February 23, 2024

6.4 Direct Inward Dialing (DID) Service (continued)

6.4.3 Frontier Communications Areas

	Installation	Monthly Recurring*
	<u>Charge</u>	
Establish Trunk Group and Provide		
Each group of 20 DID Numbers	\$125.00	\$15.00
Each group of 100 DID Numbers	\$125.00	\$25.00
Trunk Termination		
* Initial Trunk Termination, per Trunk	\$625.00	*
*Each Additional Trunk Termination	\$125.00	*
*Rate Groups (RG)		
*RG 1 - Frontier Communications of St. Croix		\$26.18 (I)
*RG 2 - Rhinelander Telephone, LLC		\$23.13 (I)
*RG 3 - Frontier Communications of Viroqua		\$15.00 (I)
*RG 4 - Rhinelander Telephone, LLC		\$23.13 (I)
*RG 5 - Rhinelander Telephone, LLC		\$23.13 (I)
*RG 7 - Frontier Communications of Wisconsin		\$27.50 (I)
*RG 8 - Rhinelander Telephone, LLC		\$23.13 (I)

^{*}Rates are in addition to recurring and non-recurring charges for PBX Trunks

Issue Date: November 23, 2022 Effective Date: December 23, 2022

6.4 Direct Inward Dialing (DID) Service (continued) 6.4.4 Brightspeed fCenturyTel Areas (T)

	Installation		
	<u>Charge</u>	<u>Monthly</u>	Recurring
Establish Trunk Group and Provide			
First group of 20 DID Numbers	\$187.50	\$12.50	
Each add'l group of 20 DID Numbers	\$66.75	\$12.50	
		Initial	Additional
		Termination	Terminations
Trunk Termination			
RG 1	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 2	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 3	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 4	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 5	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 6	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 7	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 8	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 9	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 10	\$375.00	\$34.13	\$35.31
RG 11	\$375.00	\$43.75 (I)	\$43.75 (I)
RG 12	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 13	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 14	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 15	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 16	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 17	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 18	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 19	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 20	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 21	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 22	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 23	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 24	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 25	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 26	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 27	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 28	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)
RG 29	\$375.00	\$30.00 (I)	\$30.00 (I)

6.5 Optional Calling Features

The features in this section are made available on an individual basis or as part of multiple feature packages. All features are provided subject to availability. Certain features may not be available with all classes of service. Transmission levels for calls forwarded or calls placed or received using optional calling features may not be acceptable for all some uses in some cases.

6.5.1 Features Offered on a Usage Sensitive Basis

The following features are available to all local exchange Business line Customers where facilities and services permit. Customers may utilize each feature by dialing the appropriate access code. The Customer will be billed the Per Feature Activation Charge shown in the following table each time a feature is used by the Customer. Customers may subscribe to these features on a monthly basis at their option to obtain unlimited use of these features for a fixed monthly charge.

6.5.1.1 AT&T Areas

Optional Calling Features	Business
Three-Way Calling, per call	\$3.00
Automatic Callback, per call	\$3.00
Repeat Dialing per call	\$1.49

6.5.1.2 Frontier North Areas

Optional Calling Features	Business
*Three-Way Calling, per call	\$3.00
*Call Return, per call	\$3.00
*Auto Redial, per call	\$3.00
**Calling Trace, per line	\$8.50 (I)

^{*}Maximum charge is \$ 15.00 per month

Issue Date: November 23, 2022 Effective Date: December 23, 2022

^{**}Maximum charge is \$32.50 per month

6.5 Optional Calling Features

6.5.1.3 Frontier Communications Areas

Optional Calling Features	Business
*Three-Way Calling, per call	\$4.00
*Call Return, per call	\$4.00
*Auto Redial, per call	\$4.00
**Calling Trace, per line	\$9.50

^{*}Maximum charge is \$ 15.00 per month

6.5.1.4 Brightspeed fCenturyTel Areas (T)

Optional Calling Features	Business
*Three-Way Calling, per call	\$2.50
*Call Return, per call	\$2.50
*Auto Redial, per call	\$2.50
Calling Trace, per line	\$7.50

^{*}Maximum charge is \$7.60 per month

^{**}Maximum charge is \$32.50 per month

6.5 Optional Calling Features (continued)

6.5.2 Features Offered on a Monthly Basis

The following optional calling features are offered to Customers on a monthly basis. Customers are allowed unlimited use of each feature. No usage sensitive charges apply. Multiline Customers must order the appropriate number of features based on the number of lines which will have access to the feature.

6.5.2.1 AT&T Areas

FEATURE	MONTHLY RATE
Anonymous Call Rejection	-
Call Forwarding-Variable	\$27.83
Cal Forwarding-Busy Line	\$0.75
Cal Forwarding-No Answer	\$0.75
Call Forwarding Busy Line- Customer Control	\$1.00
Call Forwarding No Answer- Customer Control	\$1.00
Call Control-Outgoing Numbers and Type of Dialed Calls Allowed	\$13.52
Direct Connect	\$540.00 (I)
Call Intercept/Privacy Manager	\$55.66
Last Number Dialed/Saved Number	\$1.50
Inside Wire Maintenance Plan	\$8.50
Call Waiting	\$27.83
Caller ID - Basic	\$38.04
Caller ID – Deluxe (additional to Basic)	\$2.60
Distinctive Ring One Dependent Number	\$5.50
Distinctive Ring Two Dependent Number	\$5.00
Message Waiting Indicator	\$0.25
Speed Calling (30-Code)	\$8.75
Speed Calling (8-Code)	\$21.15
Three-Way Calling	\$26.44
Remote Call Forward (each path)	\$42.69
Unlimited Automatic Callback	\$7.00
Unlimited Call Return	\$6.50

Issue Date: January 23, 2024 Effective Date: February 23, 2024

- 6.5 Optional Calling Features (continued)
 - 6.5.2 Features Offered on a Monthly Basis (continued)

6.5.2.2 Frontier North Areas

	MONTHLY
FEATURE	RATE
Anonymous Call Rejection	\$6.50
Call Forwarding-Variable	\$9.50
Cal Forwarding-Busy Line	\$9.25
Cal Forwarding-No Answer	\$9.00
Call Forwarding Busy Line/Don't Answer	\$9.50
Select Call Forward	\$6.99
Enhanced Call Forward	\$13.00
Multiple Simultaneous Call Forward	\$11.00
Call Waiting/Cancel Call Waiting	\$10.25
Speed Dialing (8 code)	\$6.99
Speed Dialing (30 code)	\$6.99
Three-way Calling	\$10.99
Distinctive Ring	\$7.50
Busy Number Redial (*66)	\$6.99
Call Return*69	\$6.99
Call Block	\$5.00
Do Not Disturb	\$5.00
Selective Call Forwarding	\$6.99
Priority Call	\$6.99
Caller ID – Number Only**	\$12.00
Caller ID	\$14.50
Remote Activated Call Forward	\$6.99
Selective Call Acceptance	\$6.99 (I)
Selective Call Rejection	\$6.99 (I)
Remote Call Forwarding (First path)	\$42.50
Remote Call Forwarding (Each additional path)	\$42.50
Line Hunt Service	\$1.99

** Grandfathered

Issue Date: April 23, 2023 Effective Date: May 23, 2023

6.5 Optional Calling Features (continued)

6.5.2 Features Offered on a Monthly Basis (continued)

6.5.2.3 Frontier Communications

FEATURE	MONTHLY RATE
Anonymous Call Rejection	\$7.19
Call Forwarding-Variable	\$11.88
Cal Forwarding-Busy Line	\$11.88
Cal Forwarding-No Answer	\$11.88
Call Forwarding Busy Line/Don't Answer	\$11.88
Select Call Forward	\$8.74
Multiple Simultaneous Call Forward	\$13.75
Call Waiting/Cancel Call Waiting	\$12.81
Speed Dialing (8 code)**	\$8.74
Speed Dialing (30 code)	\$8.74
Three-way Calling	\$12.81
Distinctive Ring	\$9.38
Busy Number Redial (*66)	\$8.74
Call Return*69	\$8.74
Selective Call Screening	\$7.50
Priority Call	\$8.74
Caller ID – Number Only**	\$13.75
Caller ID	\$18.13
Remote Access to Call Forwarding	\$8.74
Selective Call Acceptance	\$8.74
Selective Call Rejection	\$8.74
Remote Call Forwarding (Each path)	\$42.50 (I)

^{**} Grandfathered

Issue Date: November 23, 2022 Effective Date: December 23, 2022

- 6.5 Optional Calling Features (continued)
 - 6.5.2 Features Offered on a Monthly Basis (continued)

6.5.2.4 Brightspeed fCenturyTel (T)

	MONTHLY
FEATURE	RATE
Anonymous Call Rejection	\$6.99
Call Forwarding Variable	\$6.35
Call Forwarding Don't Answer	\$6.35
Call Forwarding Busy Line	\$6.35
Ultra Forward	\$7.06
Call Waiting	\$10.00
Caller ID - Number Only	\$14.94
Caller ID Name & Number	\$14.94
Distinctive Ring, One additional telephone number with distinctive	
ringing, per line	\$14.05
Distinctive Ring, Two additional telephone number with distinctive	
ringing, per line	\$14.05
Speed Calling (30-Code)	\$7.76
Speed Calling (8-Code)	\$6.35
Three-Way Calling	\$7.06
Call Intercept Privacy Manager	\$7.06
Unlimited Call Return	\$7.50
Unlimited Repeat Dialing	\$7.50
Remote Call Forwarding	\$43.75 (I)
Hunting per Line or Trunk	\$2.35

6.6 Directory Assistance Services

6.6.1 AT&T Areas

Local \$5.99 National \$5.99

6.6.2 Frontier North Areas

Local \$5.99 National \$5.99

6.6.3 Frontier Communications Areas

Local \$5.99 National \$5.99

6.6.4 Brightspeed fCenturyTel Areas (T)

Local \$6.99 National \$6.99

6.7 Listing Services

6.7.1 AT&T Areas

Additional Listing	\$7.00
Foreign Listing	\$7.00
Non-Listed	\$4.50
Non-Published	\$6.50

6.7.2 Frontier North Areas

Additional Listing	\$25.00
Foreign Listing	\$12.50 (I)
Non-Listed	\$7.50
Non-Published	\$8.00

6.7.3 Frontier Communications Areas

Additional Listing	\$31.25
Foreign Listing	\$12.50 (I)
Non-Listed	\$9.38
Non-Published	\$10.00

6.7.4 Brightspeed fCenturyTel Areas

Additional Listing	\$11.25
Non-Listed	\$13.75
Non-Published	\$13.75

Issue Date: July 31, 2024 Effective Date: August 1, 2024

6.8 Reserved For Future Use

(C)

(D)

(D)

Issue Date: August 14, 2019 Effective Date: August 15, 2019

6.9 Subscriber Intrastate Access Service

6.9.1 General Description

The Subscriber Intrastate Access Service provides interconnected access to the local public switched telephone network so that local exchange customers can make and receive calls to and from the customers of other carriers within the state.

6.9.2 Limitations

- (A) A telephone number is not provided with Subscriber Intrastate Access Service.
- (B) Detail billing is not provided with Subscriber Intrastate Access Service.
- (C) Directory listings are not included with Subscriber Intrastate Access Service.
- (D) Intercept arrangements are not included with Subscriber Intrastate Access Service

6.9.3 Undertaking of the Company

The Company will provide Subscriber Intrastate Access Service to each Customer that subscribes to its local exchange service.

6.9.4 Term of Service

Subscriber Intrastate Access Service shall be coterminous with the Company's local exchange service, and the Subscriber Access Charge shall apply for each telephone line or service as defined herein for all periods in which Customer subscribes to local exchange service from the Company.

6.9.5 Rate Regulations

(A) If Customer is eligible to receive prorated credit for their associated local exchange service, such as for network outages or suspension or termination of service, the Subscriber Access Charge will be prorated or credited in the same manner consistent with the terms of this Product Guide and any contract. No other credits are available for Subscriber Intrastate Access Service.

- 6.9 Subscriber Intrastate Access Service (continued)
 - 6.9.5 Rate Regulations (continued)
 - (B) When Customer is provided more than one local business exchange service in a state, the Subscriber Access Charge Multi-line Business Subscriber rates are assessed for each line.
 - (C) The Subscriber Access Charge, as set forth in 6.9.6 following, will be billed to the end user subscriber of the associated local exchange service, including, where applicable, a reseller of the associated local exchange service, in which case the reseller shall be deemed an end user for purposes of application of such charges.
 - (D) For each local exchange service provided as remote call forwarding business service under the Local Exchange Service Tariff or Product Guide, the Subscriber Access Charge does not apply.

6.9.6 Rates

			ILEC AREA / OCN		
Business Customer Service Type	AT&T / 5220	FRONTIER NORTH/ 0886	FRONTIER COMM/ 0870/0912/0944/ 0964/0967/1183	TELEPHONE USA OF WI OCN 1155 (N)	BRIGHTSPEED/(C) 0841/0857/0877/0884/089 5/0898/0922/0924/0931/0 934/0950/0956/0959/0970 /1159
Single Line Local Exchange Service	7.50 (I)	8.65	7.50	7.50	7.50
Multi-line Local Exchange Service	7.97 (I)	9.49 (I)	10.20	10.20	10.20
Centrex	7.97 (I)	9.49 (I)	10.20	10.20	10.20
Trunk	7.97 (I)	9.49 (I)	10.20	10.20	10.20
PRI	39.85 (I)	47.45 (I)	51.00	51.00	51.00
T-1/Digital PBX	191.28 (I)	227.76 (I)	244.80	244.80	244.80
BRI	7.97 (I)	8.00	8.00	7.50	7.50

Issue Date: October 16, 2023 Effective Date: December 1, 2023

6.10 Local Telecom Surcharge

6.10.1 Rate Regulations,

(A) Telecommunications rules and regulations allows Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers to increase rates to wholesale providers in the form of a surcharge per line. As a result of these rate increases, the Company will assess the Local Telecom Surcharge on all local exchange service lines provided by the Company. See table in paragraph 6.15 following for rates.

6.11 Carrier Access Recovery Charge

6.11.1 Rate Regulations,

(A) Customers assessed a Subscriber Intrastate Access Charge as specified in paragraph 6.9.6 preceding will be assessed a flat-rated, monthly Carrier Access Recovery Charge (CARC). CARCs will be billed to the associated end user or reseller of the local exchange services except for those customers who participate in the Lifeline Assistance Program. See table in paragraph 6.15 following for rates.

6.12 Regulatory Recovery Fee-State

6.12.1 Rate Regulations,

(A) Regulatory Recovery Fee-State (RRF-S) is a charge assessed to recover the costs of state and local regulatory activities, including costs associated with compliance filings, payments to industry organizations for required services, legal expenses and employee salaries related to those Company regulatory activities. See table in paragraph 6.15 following for rates.

6.13 End User Port Charges

6.13.1 Rate Regulations,

Certain local exchange services provided under the general and/or local exchange service tariffs are subject to End User Port Charges. These services include:

- Business Lines, Centrex Lines
- Integrated Services Digital Network (ISDN) Basic Rate and Primary Rate
- T-1 Digital PBX Services
- PBX Trunks

See table in paragraph 6.16 following for rates

6.14 Local Portability Charge

6.14.1 Rate Regulations,

- (A) Telecommunications rules and regulations require all local phone companies to provide "service provider number portability," which allows customers to retain their local phone number when switching companies to provide their local phone service. The Local Portability Charge (LPC) is used by telephone companies to recover the costs associated with the development, implementation, and operability of service provider number portability.
- (B) The Company will assess the Local Portability Charge (LPC) on all local exchange services. The LPC, as set forth below applies to all local exchange service lines provided by the Company. See table in paragraph 6.15 following for rates.

6.15 Rate Table (LTS, CARC, RRF-S and LPC) applies to all Service Areas:

Monthly Per Line or Per Trunk*

	Business				
Services	Local Telecom Surcharge	Carrier Access Recovery Charge	Regulatory Recovery Fee-State	Local Portability Charge	
Single Line Local Exchange Svc.	\$5.00	\$4.50	\$2.99	\$1.49	
Multi-line Local Exchange Svc.	\$5.00	\$4.50	\$2.99	\$1.49	
Lifeline customer	-	-	-	-	
ISDN BRI	\$5.00	\$4.50	\$2.99	\$1.49	
ISDN PRI (rates per svc.)	-	\$22.50	\$14.95	\$53.55	
Foreign Exchange—Single Line	\$5.00	\$4.50	\$2.99	\$1.49	
Foreign Exchange–Multi-Line	\$5.00	\$4.50	\$2.99	\$1.49	
Remote Call Forward	\$5.00	1	-	\$1.49	
Centrex	\$5.00	\$4.50	\$2.99	\$1.49	
Trunks	\$5.00	\$4.50	\$2.99	\$10.71	
T-1/Digital PBX (rates per svc.)	-	\$22.50	\$14.95	\$53.55	

^{*}Unless otherwise noted

6.16 End User Port Charge Rate Table

Business Monthly Per Line or Per Trunk*

	End User Port Charge				
Services	AT&T Wisconsin (OCN 5220)	Brightspeed fCenturyTel (Multiple OCNs)**	Frontier North fVZN GTE (OCN 0886)	Frontier Comm. Legacy Co's. (OCNs: 0870,0912, 0944,0964,0967, 1183)	Telephone USA of WI dba CenturyLink (OCN 1155)
Single Line Local Exchange Svc.	\$0.99	-	-	-	-
Multi-line Local Exchange Svc.	\$0.99	-	-	-	-
Lifeline customer	1	-	1	-	-
ISDN BRI	\$1.58	\$2.23	\$1.62	\$6.91	\$2.23
ISDN PRI (rates per svc.)	\$15.53	\$23.51	\$15.53	\$59.21	\$23.51
Foreign Exchange–Single Line	\$0.99	-	-	-	-
Foreign Exchange–Multi-Line	\$0.99	-	-	-	-
Remote Call Forward	-	-	-	-	-
Centrex	\$0.99	-	-	-	-
Trunks	\$0.99	-	-	-	-
T-1/Digital PBX (rates per svc.)	\$28.18	\$23.51	\$28.18	-	\$23.51

^{*}Unless otherwise noted

SECTION 7 – ADVANCED SERVICES

7.1 MetPathTM ISDN PRI Service

ISDN PRI offers an array of value-added features, such as calling number identification and call-by-call selection that enhance productivity. ISDN PRI is configured with 23 64 Kbps bi-directional B (Bearer) channels and one 64 Kbps D (Data) channel. Unique to ISDN PRI is its ability to designate the D channel to handle all of the signaling and call control requirements and leave the remaining 23 B channels free for any mix of circuit-switched voice and data.

Each of these products is offered under a 12, 24 or 36 month term agreement. Rates include unlimited local calling for sent-paid, directly dialed calls. Rates do not include calling card calls, information type calls to Time and Weather, 555, 700, 900, 976 Services, Directory Assistance or any other type of Operator Handled call.

MetPath™ ISDN PRI includes the following non-optional Feature Package: Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number and Call by Call Selection.

Regional Toll and Long Distance Services must be PIC'd to the Company. These rates are in addition to ISDN PRI and DS1 rates below.

Recurring Charges

	Monthly Recurring Charge				
	12 Months 24 Months 36 Months				
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB		

7.1 MetPathTM ISDN PRI Service (Continued)

Non-Recurring Charges

Non-Reculting Charges				
	Non-Recurring Charge			
	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	
All Areas				
First Line	ICB	ICB	ICB	
Each Add'l Line	ICB	ICB	ICB	
Expedite Service Charge ¹	Per PRI			
All Areas	ICB			
		Subsequent		
Order Supplement Charge ²	First Change	Change		
All Areas	ICB	ICB		
Order Cancellation Charge	Per PRI			
All Areas	ICB			

¹Expedite Service Charges apply when customer requests installation of service in less time than normal installation interval of 30 business days.

²Order Supplement Charges apply when a change of the Requested Service Date is requested by customer. A change of requested service date must be within 30 days of the previous requested service date. In no event will the Company be obligated to accept more than three (3) changes to a requested service date. The service will be deemed canceled upon the fourth (4) such request and applicable Order Cancellation Charges will apply

7.2 MetPathTM Digital DS-1 PBX Service

This service provides a trunk side DS1 electrical interface from the customer's digital PBX system to a MetPathTM digital port on a local Company switch for the origination and termination of calls. Traffic to and from the digital PBX can be received or dialed directly from any PBX station without the need for an attendant.

These digital trunks deliver a high-speed DS1 (T1) connection between your PBX and the Company network. There are up to 24 channels on one facility, each of which can be used to place or receive calls. This multi-channel capability dramatically reduces the need for additional PBX circuit cards.

Each of these products is offered under a 12, 24 or 36 month term agreement. Rates include unlimited local calling for sent-paid, directly dialed calls. Rates do not include calling card calls, information type calls to Time and Weather, 555, 700, 900, 976 Services, Directory Assistance or any other type of Operator Handled call.

Regional Toll and Long Distance Services must be PIC'd to the Company. These rates are in addition to ISDN PRI and DS1 rates below.

Monthly Recurring Charges

	Monthly Recurring Charge				
	12 Months 24 Months 36 Months				
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB		

7.2 MetPathTM Digital DS-1 PBX Service (Continued)

	Non-Recurring Charge			
	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months	
All Areas				
First Line	ICB	ICB	ICB	
Each Add'l Line	ICB	ICB	ICB	
Expedite Service Charge ¹	Per DS1			
All Areas	ICB			
		Subsequent		
Order Supplement Charge ²	First Change	Change		
All Areas	ICB	ICB		
	_			
Order Cancellation Charge	Per DS1			
All Areas	ICB			

¹Expedite Service Charges apply when customer requests installation of service in less time than normal installation interval of 30 business days.

²Order Supplement Charges apply when a change of the Requested Service Date is requested by customer. A change of requested service date must be within 30 days of the previous requested service date. In no event will the Company be obligated to accept more than three (3) changes to a requested service date. The service will be deemed canceled upon the fourth (4) such request and applicable Order Cancellation Charges will apply.

7.3 MetPathTM ISDN PRI Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service

ISDN PRI offers an array of value-added features, such as calling number identification and call-by-call selection that enhance productivity. ISDN PRI is configured with 23 64 Kbps bi-directional B (Bearer) channels and one 64 Kbps D (Data) channel. Unique to ISDN PRI is its ability to designate the D channel to handle all of the signaling and call control requirements and leave the remaining 23 B channels free for any mix of circuit-switched voice and data.

This product is offered under a 12, 24 or 36 month term agreement. Rates include unlimited local calling for sent-paid, directly dialed calls. Rates do not include calling card calls, information type calls to Time and Weather, 555, 700, 900, 976 Services, Directory Assistance or any other type of Operator Handled call.

The Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service Products are offered with six different increments of Toll/LD Minutes of Use: 5,000, 10,000, 15,000, 30,000, 50,000 and 100,000. Installation charges are included in the monthly recurring charges. Regional Toll and Long Distance Services must be PIC'd to the Company.

MetPathTM ISDN PRI with Unlimited Local and Bundled 5,000 Long Distance MOU This package includes unlimited local and 5,000 long distance minutes of use. Also included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number & Call-by-Call Selection (ISDN PRI) long distance usage @ 5,000 MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at \$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge				
	12 Months 24 Months 36 Months				
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB		

7.3 MetPathTM ISDN PRI Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service (continued)

MetPathTM ISDN PRI with Unlimited Local and Bundled 10,000 Long Distance MOU This package includes unlimited local and 10,000 long distance minutes of use. Also included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number & Call-by-Call Selection (ISDN PRI) long distance usage @ 10,000 MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at \$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge				
	12 Months 24 Months 36 Months				
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB		

MetPathTM ISDN PRI with Unlimited Local and Bundled 15,000 Long Distance MOU This package includes unlimited local and 15,000 long distance minutes of use. Also included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number & Call-by-Call Selection (ISDN PRI) long distance usage @ 15,000 MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at \$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge				
	12 Months 24 Months 36 Months				
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB		

7.3 MetPathTM ISDN PRI Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service (continued)

MetPathTM ISDN PRI with Unlimited Local and Bundled 30,000 Long Distance MOU This package includes unlimited local and 30000 long distance minutes of use. Also included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number & Call-by-Call Selection (ISDN PRI) long distance usage @ 30,000 MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at \$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge				
	12 Months 24 Months 36 Months				
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB		

MetPath™ ISDN PRI with Unlimited Local and Bundled 50,000 Long Distance MOU This package includes unlimited local and 50,000 long distance minutes of use. Also included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number & Call-by-Call Selection (ISDN PRI) long distance usage @ 50,000 MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at \$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge		
	12 Months 24 Months 36 Months		
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB

7.3 MetPathTM ISDN PRI Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service (continued)

MetPathTM ISDN PRI with Unlimited Local and Bundled 100,000 Long Distance MOU This package includes unlimited local and 100,000 long distance minutes of use. Also included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number & Call-by-Call Selection (ISDN PRI) long distance usage @ 100,000 MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at \$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge		
	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB

7.4 MetPathTM Digital DS-1 PBX Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service

This service provides a trunk side DS1 electrical interface from the customer's digital PBX system to a MetPathTM digital port on a local Company switch for the origination and termination of calls. Traffic to and from the digital PBX can be received or dialed directly from any PBX station without the need for an attendant.

These digital trunks deliver a high-speed DS1 (T1) connection between your PBX and the Company network. There are up to 24 channels on one facility, each of which can be used to place or receive calls. This multi-channel capability dramatically reduces the need for additional PBX circuit cards.

Each of these products is offered under a 12, 24 or 36 month term agreement. Rates include unlimited local calling for sent-paid, directly dialed calls. Rates do not include calling card calls, information type calls to Time and Weather, 555, 700, 900, 976 Services, Directory Assistance or any other type of Operator Handled call.

7.4 MetPathTM Digital DS-1 PBX Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service (continued)

The MetPathTM Digital DS-1 PBX Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service Products are offered with six different increments of Toll/LD Minutes of Use: 5,000, 10,000, 15,000, 30,000, 50,000 and 100,000. Installation charges are included in the monthly recurring charges. Regional Toll and Long Distance Services must be PIC'd to the Company.

MetPathTM ISDN DS1 with Unlimited Local and Bundled 5,000 Long Distance MOU
This package includes unlimited local and 5,000 long distance minutes of use. Also
included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number and long distance usage @ 5,000
MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at
\$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge		
	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB

MetPathTM ISDN DS1 with Unlimited Local and Bundled 10,000 Long Distance MOU
This package includes unlimited local and 10,000 long distance minutes of use. Also
included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number and long distance usage @ 10,000
MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at
\$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge		
	24 Months	24 Months	24 Months
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB

7.4 MetPathTM Digital DS-1 PBX Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service (continued)

MetPath™ ISDN DS1 with Unlimited Local and Bundled 15,000 Long Distance MOU
This package includes unlimited local and 15,000 long distance minutes of use. Also
included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number and long distance usage @ 15,000
MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at
\$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge		
	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB

MetPathTM ISDN DS1 with Unlimited Local and Bundled 30,000 Long Distance MOU This package includes unlimited local and 30000 long distance minutes of use. Also included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number and long distance usage @ 30,000 MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at \$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge		
	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB

7.4 MetPathTM Digital DS-1 PBX Service with Unlimited Local Calling and Bundled Toll/LD Service (continued)

MetPathTM ISDN DS1 with Unlimited Local and Bundled 50,000 Long Distance MOU This package includes unlimited local and 50,000 long distance minutes of use. Also included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number and long distance usage @ 50,000 MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at \$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge		
	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB

MetPathTM ISDN DS1 with Unlimited Local and Bundled 100,000 Long Distance MOU This package includes unlimited local and 100,000 long distance minutes of use. Also included is Inbound Calling Line ID-Name & Number and long distance usage @ 100,000 MOUs (including regional toll). Usage over the selected LD package will be billed at \$0.049 per minute.

	Monthly Recurring Charge		
	12 Months	24 Months	36 Months
All Areas	ICB	ICB	ICB

7.5 MetPathTM ISDN BRI Service

Integrated Services Digital Network Basic Rate Interface (ISDN BRI) is a service that provides an integrated voice/data communications capability for the transmission of circuit switched voice and data signals. ISDN services use two 64 Kbps "B" channels to transmit any combination of Circuit Switched Voice and/or Circuit Switched Data. The "D" channel is used for signaling.

In the AT&T Area the Flat Rate Threshold Pricing plan allows up to 320 hours of use each month per Digital Line. Minutes of use rates will apply for all usage above the 320 hours per Digital Line threshold. The Basic Local Calling area for Usage Option Plan A will be the LATA boundary. Local usage under Usage Option Plan A will be recorded on originating calls terminating within the LATA. Minutes of use rates will apply for all local usage. This plan is limited to outward only service. Usage Option Plan B will have unlimited usage inside the Extended Local Calling Area. The Extended Local Calling Area for Usage Option Plan B will be the Basic Local Calling Area plus any applicable Extended Calling Area.

7.5.1 AT&T Areas

	Monthly Rate
ISDN BRI Digital Line - Flat Rate (FR)	
Includes \$60.00 Flat Rate Usage Package	\$7873.75
ISDN BRI Measured Rate Usage Option Plan A	
w/LATA-Wide Calling	\$7873.75
BRI Message rate – per message	\$4.15 (I)
ISDN BRI AC Switched Voice or Data Exc Svc	\$741.25
ISDN BRI Add'l. Call Offering	\$3.75
ISDN BRI Secondary Directory Number	\$3.13
ISDN BRI Intercom Calling	\$3.13

LD Calls

Circuit Switched Data
Interstate Rate – per min \$0.0890
Intrastate Rate – per min \$0.0990

Issue Date: May 3, 2024 Effective Date: June 1, 2024

5

SECTION 7 – ADVANCED SERVICES

7.5 MetPathTM ISDN BRI Service (continued)

7.5.2 Frontier North Areas

	Monthly
	Rate
ISDN BRI Measured Service	\$62.65
ISDN BRI Measured Service including 400 Hrs. block of	\$114.81 (I)
time	
Usage over Allowance	
*Each Minute Over 400 Hours per Month	\$0.05 per
	_
ISDN BRI Secondary Directory Number	\$2.50

Non-Recurring Charges

\$100.00

Local exchange rates apply in addition to the monthly access rates.

LD Calls

Circuit Switched Data

Interstate Rate – per min \$0.0890 Intrastate Rate – per min \$0.1290

7.5.3 Frontier Communications Areas

ISDN Basic Rate Interface

N/A

Issue Date: January 23, 2024 Effective Date: February 23, 2024

^{*}Usage applies to all originating voice/circuit switched data calls terminating within the local calling area. Applicable toll charges apply as required, in addition to block of time

7.5 MetPathTM ISDN BRI Service (continued)

7.5.4 Brightspeed fCenturyTel Areas (T)

	Monthly
	Rate
ISDN BRI Digital Line - Flat Rate (FR) ¹	\$71.25
ISDN BRI AC Switched Voice or Data	\$17.19
ISDN BRI Circuit Switched Data	\$15.94
ISDN BRI Link Extension Facility, per BRI	\$49.13
ISDN BRI Packet Switch Data – B Channel	\$106.25
ISDN BRI Packet Switch Data – D Channel	\$8.13
ISDN BRI Secondary Directory Number	\$3.75
ISDN BRI Additional Call Offering	\$6.25

Non- Recurring Charges First Line Installation

First Line Installation \$93.75 Additional Line Installation \$93.75

LD Calls

Circuit Switched Data

Interstate Rate – per min \$0.0890 Intrastate Rate – per min \$0.1290

¹ BRI Rate includes Access Line Rate.

7.6 MetPathTM Digital Centrex Service

MetPathTM Digital Centrex Service delivers superior performance, PBX-like functionality including abbreviated dialing, and is compatible with many telephone sets. Each user has a unique seven-digit direct telephone number and customized features. The service is affordable, power failure safe and provides a scalable platform for future growth and technology.

Monthly Recurring Charges – All Areas

Contract Length	Monthly Recurring Charge
12 months – Assume Dial 9	ICB
12 months	ICB
24 months	ICB
36 months	ICB

NOTES FOR ALL: Availability of services must be verified with the Company based on customer address and NPA-NXX. Rates do not included FCC End User Charge, FCC Port Charge, or other surcharges and taxes. Minimum service period is 12 months. If service is cancelled prior to the end of the contract, a termination charge will be calculated as follows: a. The average of the sum of all line charges on three previous Company invoices to the customer (excluding taxes) multiplied by the number of months remaining in the term agreement.

SECTION 8 – RATE GROUPS

Charges for local services provided by the Company may be based, in part, on the Rate Group associated with the Customers End Office. The Rate Group is determined by the total access lines and PBX trunks in the local calling area which can be reached from each End Office.

8.1 AT&T Areas

EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP
Algoma	3	Hudson	3	Parkside	3
Appleton	2	Jackson	3	Pewaukee	3
Beaver Dam	3	Janesville	2	Port Washigtn	3
Beloit	2	Jefferson	3	Racine	2
Big bend	3	Juneau	3	Richmond	3
Burlington	3	Kaukauna	3	Riverfalls	3
Burnett	3	Kenosha	2	Roberts	3
Caledonia	3	Kewaunee	3	Shebogan Falls	3
Cedarburg	3	Lake Geneva	3	Sheboygan	2
Chippewa Falls	3	Little Chute	3	Somers	3
Columbus	3	Madison	1	Stevens Point	2
Delavan	3	Manitowoc	2	Stoughton	3
De Pere	3	Mayville	3	Sturgeon Bay	3
		Mayville - village			
Eau Claire	2	of Iron Ridge	3	Sussex	3
Ellsworth	3	Menomonee Falls	2	Thiensville	3
Evansville	3	Menomonie	3	Union Grove	3
Fondou Lake	2	Merton	3	Van Dyne	3
Fort Atkinson	3	Milwaukee	1	Watertown	3
Genoa City	3	Muskego	3	Waukesha	2
Green Bay	2	Neenah- Menasha	2	Waupaca	3
Hartford	3	New London	3	Waupun	3
Hartland	3	Newburg	3	West bend	3
Horicon	3	North Lake	3	Whitewater	3
Hortonville	3	Oconomowoc	3	Williams Bay	3
Houlton	3	Omro	3	Winneconne	3
Hubertus	3	Oshkosh	2	Wrightstown	3

8.2 Frontier North

EXCHANGE	RATE GROU P	EXCHANGE	RATE GROU P	EXCHANGE	RATE GROU P
Adams	2	Edgerton	2	Mineral Point	2
Allenton	2	Egg Harbor	2	Minocqua	3
Antigo	3	Elkhart Lake	2	Mishicot	2
Apple River	4	Greenbush	1	Monroe Center	2
Arena	1	Hatley	2	Montello	2
Athens	2	Hilbert	2	Mt. Calvary	1
Baileys Harbor	2	Hollandale	1	Neosho	2
Belgium	2	Hustisford	2	New Holstein	2
Belleville	2	Ithaca	1	Oakfield	2
Birnamwood	2	Jacksonport	1	Oostburg	2
Bloom City	1	Johnsburg	1	Oregon	2
Briggsville	1	Kewaskum	2	Orfordville	2
Brillion	2	Kiel	2	Owen	2
Bristol	2	Lake Mills	2	Pardeeville	2
Brodhead	2	Land O' Lakes	2	Phelps	2
Brooklyn	2	Lebanon	1	Pickerel	2
Cambridge	2	Lime Ridge	1	Plain	1
Campbellsport	2	Lodi	2	Plymouth	3
Cascade	2	Loganville	1	Portage	3
Cedar Grove	2	Lomira	2	Random Lake	2
Chilton	2	Lone Rock	2	Reedsburg	2
Clinton	2	Loyal	2	Reedsville	2
Clyman	1	Lyndon Station	1	Richland Center	2
Cobb	2	Mapleton	2	Ridgeway	2
Colby	2	Marathon	2	St.Cloud	1
Cottage Grove	2	Marshall	2	Salem	2
Darien	2	Marshfield	3	Sauk City	2
Deerfield	2	Mattoon	1	Sayner	2
Dodgeville	2	Mauston	2	Silver Lake	2
Eagle River	3	McFarland	2	Sister Bay	2
Eden	2	Merrill	3	Slinger	2
Edgar	2	Merrimac	1	Spencer	2

8.2 Frontier North (Cont'd)

EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP
Spring Green	2	Two Rivers	2	Whitelaw	2
				Wisconsin	
St Cloud	1	Walworth	1	Dells	2
Stratford	2	Warren	4	Witwen	1
		Washington			
Sun Prairie	3	Island	1		
Theresa	1	Waterloo	2		
Three Lakes	2	Waubeka	2		
Tomahawk	2	Wausau	3		
Trevor	2	Westfield	2		
Twin Lakes	2	White Lake	1		

8.3 Frontier Communications

EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP
Argonne	2	Keshena	7	Star Prairie	1
Bear Creek	7	Lake Tomahawk	4	Sugar Camp	4
Bowler	7	Marion	7	Tigerton	7
Cecil	7	Mondovi	6	Viroqua	3
Clintonville	7	Neopit	7		
Crandon	2	New Richmond	1		
Crescent Lake	5	Pelican Lake	4		
Elcho	4	Rhinelander	5		
Fairplay	9	Rib Lake	8		
Gresham	7	Shawano	7		

8.4 Brightspeed fCenturyTel (T)

	RATE		RATE		RATE
EXCHANGE	GROUP	EXCHANGE	GROUP	EXCHANGE	GROUP
Almacenter	18	Cashton	29	Fall River	12
Amberg	4	Cataract	29	Footville	5
Arcadia	18	Centervl	18	Forestvl	14
Argyle	18	Centuria	23	Fountaincy	18
Ashland	10	Chetek	1	Fox Lake	12
Augusta	18	Cleghorn	18	Frederic	21
Avoca	4	Cloverton	16	Fremont	4
Balsamlake	23	Coleman	4	Galesville	18
Bangor	18	Colfax	23	Genesee	6
Baraboo	10	Cornell	10	Gillett	23
Barron	23	Crivitz	4	Gilman	22
Bayfield	10	Cumberland	4	Gleason	22
Bennett	24	Dairyland	17	Glen Flora	22
Benton	18	Danbury	21	Glenwoodcy	23
Berlin	10	Darlington	18	Glidden	23
Birchwood	23	De Forest	8	Goodman	9
Blackcreek	18	Delafield	6	Gordon	17
Blair	18	Denmark	18	Gratiot	18
Blckrivfls	18	Dousman	3	Green Lake	10
Boscobel	4	Dresser	25	Hammond	25
Boulderjct	22	Eagle	3	Harmony	4
Boyceville	23	Eaglepoint	22	Hawkins	22
Boyd	4	East Troy	3	Hayward	23
Brandon	19	Eastman	23	Hazelgreen	4
Brantwood	22	Elk Mound	23	Highland	4
Brussels	13	Elmwood	23	Hixton	18
Butternut	23	Elroy	4	Holcombe	22
Cadott	4	Ettrick	18	Holmen	18
Cambria	12	Fairchild	18	Hurley	10
Casco	4	Fall Creek	18	Jim Falls	22

8.4 Brightspeed fCenturyTel (cont'd) (T)

EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP
	22	Muscoda	18		10
Jump River Kendall	10		4	Redgranite Rice Lake	23
	22	Neshkoro	18	Rice Lake Rio	12
Kennan		Newfranken			
Kingston	18	Nichols	18	Ripon	4
Knapp	23	No Freedom	10	Rosendale	18
La Crosse	11	No Prairie	6	Sarona	2
Ladysmith	10	Norwalk	29	Seneca	23
Lakewood	23	Oconto	10	Seymour	18
Laona	23	Oconto Fls	10	Sheldon	22
Larsen	28	Ogema	22	Shell Lake	2
Lena	4	Ontario	29	Shiocton	18
Lewis	25	Osceola	25	Shullsburg	18
Lknebagmon	26	Osseo	18	Solon Spg	24
Ltlsturgen	13	Palmyra	3	Sparta	29
Luxemburg	18	Park Falls	23	Spiderlake	23
Maidenrock	23	Pembine	4	Spooner	4
Manishwtrs	22	Pepin	23	Springbrk	23
Marinette	10	Peshtigo	10	Springsted	22
Markesan	18	Pickett	18	Stanley	10
Mazomanie	10	Plattevl	4	Stcroixfls	23
Mellen	23	Plum City	23	Steuben	4
Melrose	18	Poplar	27	Stone Lake	23
Mercer	22	Poy Sippi	4	Sullivan	4
Merrillan	18	Poynette	8	Superior	10
Milton	5	Praridchin	23	Suring	23
Mindoro	18	Prescott	23	Taylor	18
Minong	25	Presque Is	22	Thorp	9
Montfort	18	Princeton	10	Tomah	4
Mount Zion	4	Randolph	12	Trempealeu	18
Mukwonago	6	Readfield	15	Turtlelake	2

8.4 Brightspeed FCenturyTel (Cont'd) (T)

EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP	EXCHANGE	RATE GROUP
Twinbridge	4	Wauzeka	23	Whitehall	18
W Danbury	20	Wayside	7	Wild Rose	4
Wabeno	23	Webb Lake	21	Wilton	29
Warrens	4	Webster	25	Winter	23
Washburn	10	West Salem	11	Wiota	18
Wausaukee	4	Weyauwega	4	Wonewoc	4
Wautoma	18	Wheeler	23		

SECTION 9 - PROMOTIONAL OFFERINGS

Promotional Offerings: The Company may make promotional offerings to its service which may include waiving or reducing the applicable charges for the promoted service. The promotional offerings may be limited as to the duration, the date and times of the offering and the locations where the offerings are made.

SECTION 10 - INDIVIDUAL CASE BASE (ICB) ARRANGEMENTS

Individual Case Base (ICB) Arrangements: Competitive pricing arrangements at negotiated rates may be furnished on an individual case basis (ICB) in response to request by customers to Company for proposals or for competitive bids. Service offered under this product guide provision will be provided to the Customer pursuant to contract. Unless otherwise specified, the regulations for such arrangements are in addition to the applicable regulations and prices in other sections of this product guide. Specialized rates or charges will be made available to similarly situated Customers on a non-discriminatory basis.

SECTION 11.0 – MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

11.1 MetPak Plus Bundled Service Plan (Available in AT&T Service Area Only)

A. Description

MetPak Plus Bundled Service Plan is an optional business package offer that provides the following:

- 1. Business Network Access Line
- 2. Unlimited Local Usage
- 3. Custom Calling Features
- 4. Fixed monthly rates for 12, 24 or 36 month term or a Month-to-Month Option

B. Available Features

Call Management features associated with the Service Plan Plus option are available on each line in the package at no extra charge. The customer may choose any of the following features for each line in the package.

Anonymous Call Rejection Call Waiting ID

Call Block Caller ID Name and Number

Call Forward Busy Line Hunting

Call Forward Don't Answer Remote Access Call Forwarding

Call Forward Don't Answer Ring Control Repeat Dialing
Call Forward Variable Speed Calling 8
Call Return Speed Calling 30
Call Waiting Three Way Calling

C. Requirements

Customers must use MetTel as their local and regional toll carrier. These plans only apply to voice traffic for sent-paid, directly dialed calls. Calls to Internet Service Providers which is not voice traffic is not covered under the plan. The plans are not available for use with PBX Trunks, ground start lines or trunks, ISDN BRI, ISDN PRI, Digital PBX Trunks, Remote Call Forwarding, Foreign Exchange, Coin or Pay Telephone Service or for use with Dial-up Modems, Predictive Dialers, Call Center operations, Broadcast Fax, Data Transmissions or Toll Free Services. Additional restrictions may apply.

D. Rates

Month to Month 12 Months 24 Months 36 Months \$350.00 (I) \$180.00 (I) \$170.00 (I) \$160.00 (I)

SECTION 12.0 – RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(T)

(D)

(D)

Issue Date: February 22, 2021 Effective Date: February 23, 2021